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SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

Vision 

Dynamic, Quality Conscious and Ever Progressive 

Mission 

• To be market leader in providing safe, economical, durable, 

comfortable and environment friendly means of transportation 

of international quality at competitive prices 

• To achieve market leadership in automotive wheel - rims of all 

types and sizes 

• Grow through innovation of new products and 

• Give higher return to the stakeholders. 

Corporate Strategy 

Achieve optimal performance in production and sale; continuously 

add value added products at competitive prices by maintaining 

"quality" as core element; focus on customers' satisfaction regarding 

sale, spares and service; explore new markets and enhance customers 

base; ensure right usage of company's resources; create employment 

opportunities; protect the interest of stakeholders; and be a part of 

the country's development. 
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SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

CHAIRPERSON'S REVIEW REPORT 

This review report has been prepared in compliance with 
Section 192(4) of the Companies Act, 2017 on the overall 
performance of the Board of Directors (the Board) of 
Sazgar Engineering Works Limited 
(the Company) and effectiveness of the role played by the 
Board in achieving the Company's objectives. 

The Board performance has been evaluated in accordance 
with the mechanism set by the Board for this purpose and 
overall results are satisfactory. The financial performance 
of the Company has been suppressed by the negative 
impact of the economic slowdown and outbreak of 
COVID-19 pandemic throughout the country, the 
Company has been recorded sales revenue Rs. 2.89 
Billion. The new project for the manufacturing of 
passenger cars and off-road vehicles is near to 
completion. In this regard, the Company also raised funds 
of Rs. 710.00 million through issuance of 14,200,000 Right 
shares @ Rs. 50/- each to complete the project without 
any delay. 

During the year, the Company elected nine (9) directors 
including three (3) independent directors for a period of 
three years commencing from March 20, 2020. The Board 
has been constituted with a balance of executive, non- 
executive and independent directors with requisite skills, 
competencies, knowledge, experience and gender 
diversity with reference to the Company's operations. 

The Board has appointed Chief Executive, Executive 
Director-Technical and Executive Director-Marketing for a 
period of three years effective from March 28, 2020 and 
fixed their remuneration. 

The Board exercised all its powers in deciding the 
significant matters; Five (5) Board meetings were held 
during the year in timely manner and sufficient time was 
spent by the Board to decide the matters. The directors 
actively participated in the process of decision making and 
provided their valuable contribution. Board committees 
have functioned in accordance with their terms of 
reference diligently. 

The Board ensures that the vision, mission and overall 
corporate strategy of the Company has been prepared 
and adopted and adequate resources are arranged to 
achieve the desired business targets. 

The Board continuously monitors the performance of 
management as well as appropriateness of the financial 
accounting and reporting frame work of the Company. 
The Board ensures that periodical and annual financial 
statements are prepared, reviewed and audited by the 
external auditors in timely manner. 

The Board ensures that the company is in compliance of 
its statutory obligations and good corporate governance 
practices, system of risk identification, risk management 
and related internal controls is sound in design and is 
implemented effectively with continuous monitoring. The 
Company is committed in discharging its Corporate Social 
Responsibility. Research and development work is 
continuously carried on for the innovation of new 
products and or to make the production and existing 
products more efficient to maintain or expand its market 
share. 

I would like to place on record my appreciation for the 
untiring efforts, teamwork and dedication shown by the 
Company's employees during the year under review. 

I would also like to express my gratitude to the valued 
shareholders, customers, suppliers and financial 
institutions for their continued support to the Company. 

Lahore 
September 24,2020 

Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed 
(Chairperson) 

Annual Report 2020|03 



SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

The directors of your company are pleased to present 
the 29th Annual Report along with the audited financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended 30th 
June 2020: 

BUSINESS OVERVIEW: 

The Company is principally engaged in the 
manufacturing and sale of Three Wheelers including 
Auto Rickshaws, Tractor Wheel Rims and Home 
Appliances during the financial year 2019-20. 

The continuity of economic slowdown, constant 
depletion of Pak Rupee value against foreign currencies, 
higher inflation rate and higher borrowing cost has 
adversely affected the businesses. The outbreak of 
COVID-19 pandemic throughout the country further 
deteriorated the situation. 

The Auto Sector of the country without any exception is 
passing through a tough time. During the current 
financial year, there is a decline in production and sale 
in respect of cars 54.90% and 53.50%, tractors 34.70% 
and 35.10%, 2&3 wheelers 23.10% and 23.10% 
respectively. (Source: Pakistan Automobile 
Manufacturers Association) 

Under these business conditions, the Company has 
faced lot of challenges including shut down of its 
operations for the health and safety of its employees 
for a period of more than a month. Resultantly the 
Company missed its production and sale targets during 
the current financial year. 

Due to the aforementioned factors, sales revenue has 
dropped by 10.15% whereas profitability has declined 
by 66.30% compared with corresponding period of last 
year. 

The progress on the setting up of four wheeler project 
was also hit by the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and 
Company missed to achieve its target completion date 
of 30th June, 2020. However, now it's on a fast track of 
completion. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS: 
2020 

(Rupees) 
2019 

(Rupees) 

Profit before taxation 40,773,628 111,844,513 

Provision for taxation 13,140,081 29,847,355 

Profit after taxation 
Other comprehensive 
income/{loss) for the year 
Un appropriated Profit 
brought forward 

27,633,547 

(2,787,874) 

829,038,827 

81,997,158 

5,345,702 

741,695,967 
Profit available for 
appropriation 853,884,500 829,038,827 

Appropriations: 

Reserve for issuance of 
Bonus shares @ 30% 
(2019: Nil) 

107,300,530 " 

Un appropriated profit 
carried forward 746,583,970 829,038,827 

Sales Revenue: 

The overall net sales revenue of the Company has 
decreased by 10.15% from Rupees 3,218.52 million to 
Rupees 2,891.75 million during the period under 
review. 

Segment wise: The net sale of Three Wheelers has 
decreased from Rupees 2,697.04 million to Rupees 
2,404.97 million reflecting a decline of 10.83%. The net 
sale of automotive parts has declined by 4.84 % from 
Rupees 500.20 million to Rupees 476.00 million. The net 
sales of home appliances has decreased from Rupees 
9.38 million to Rupees 4.41 million compared with the 
corresponding period of last year. During the year the 
sale of four wheeler was Rs 6.38 million. 

The sale of Three Wheelers also includes an export sale 
of Auto Rickshaw of Rupees 30.24 million showing an 
increase of 173.37% as compared to the last financial 
year export of Rupees 11.05 million. During the year, 
Company exported Auto Rickshaws to Afghanistan, 
Cambodia, Zimbabwe, South Korea and Japan. 

The overall performance of the Auto sector remained 
negative by 27% and specifically 2&3 wheelers by 23.1% 
(source: Pakistan Automobile Manufacturers 
Association). The economic slowdown, rise in selling 
prices of Company's three wheelers and outbreak of 
COVID-19 pandemic followed by lockdown of 
businesses throughout the country squeezed the 
business activities and has adversely affected the sales 
volume. 
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SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

During the current financial year, the Company also 
introduced a new model of "Cargo Loader" with three 
variants in order to cope with the current economic 
conditions. Despite of the tough competition in this 
segment, the Company has received a positive response 
so far due to its excellent designing, quality and 
durability. 

The Company sold 12,274 units of Three Wheelers as 
compared to 15,845 units sold in the last financial year. 

During the period, the production of tractors declined 
by 34.7% (source: Pakistan Automobile Manufacturers 
Association), therefore, demand of tractor wheel rims 
from the tractor assemblers was lower during the year 
as compared to the previous financial year. 

comparative figure of earning per share has to restate 
due to issuance of fresh 14,200,000 ordinary shares 
during the year. 

Production: 

During the year, the company produced 12,253 units of 
Three Wheelers reflecting a decline of 26.86% 
compared with 15,887 units produced during the 
corresponding period of last year. The plant capacity 
utilization during the year was 61.27%. 

Whereas the production of tractor wheel rim was 
68,533 compared with 73,395 during the same 
corresponding period of last year showing a decrease of 
6.62%. 

The sale of home appliances has decreased due to their 
lower demand in the market. 

Gross Profit: 

Company's gross profit has decreased from Rupees 
330.72 million to Rupees 293.01 million showing a 
decline of Rupees 37.71 million compared with the 
corresponding period of last year. The gross profit ratio 
has also declined from 10.28% to 10.13%. 

Finance Cost: 

Finance cost has increased from Rs 24.29 million to Rs. 
64.06 million showing an increase of Rs. 39.77 million 
compared with the corresponding period of last year. 
The increase is mainly on account of financial charges 
on long term loans obtained for four wheeler project 
and other short term banking facilities used during the 
year. 

Profit Before Taxation: 

Company's profit before taxation has decreased from 
Rupees 111.84 million to Rupees 40.77 million showing 
a decline of Rupees 71.07 million compared with the 
corresponding period of last year. 

Earnings Per Share: 

The Earnings per share of the Company has decreased 
from Rs. 3.04 (restated) to Rs. 0.96 as compared to 
corresponding period of last year showing a reduction 
in profits available for distribution to shareholders. The 

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES: 

Risks: 

The company is exposed to a large number of internal 
and external risks. Risk is the chance of happening of an 
event that can prevent the company from achieving its 
objectives. 

All Risks cannot be eliminated, these can be managed, 
mitigated and transferred to third party. 

The board of directors has overall responsibility to 
establish and oversee the Company's Risk Management 
framework. 

The board has established Risk Management Policies for 
the governance of risks and determination of company's 
level of risk tolerance. The board reviews annually to 
ensure that the management has maintained a sound 
system of risk identification, risk management and 
related internal controls to safeguard the assets, 
resources, reputation and interest of the company and 
shareholders. The system is subject to continuous 
monitoring for its further improvement. 

The policies on Risk Management and Internal Control 
containing complete detail of frame work have been 
placed on Company's website. 

The following are some of principal risks being faced by 
the company: 
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SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

Market Penetration of new products: 

The Company intends to introduce passenger cars and 
off-road vehicles in the market during the financial year 
2020-21. This would be the new segment of market for 
the Company and it has to face various challenges for 
penetration in the market. 

The Company is establishing a solid dealership network 
throughout the country for the marketing, sale and 
after sale service of its products. The Company is 
receiving inquiries on daily basis from the prospective 
buyers of the passenger cars and off-road vehicles and 
interested parties for the dealership. 

The Company also took part in automobile exhibition 
held in Expo Centre and PAF Golf Tournament in Lahore 
and received very positive feedback from the 
prospective customers and general public at large. 

A marketing plan is being finalized for the launching of 
new products which will help and make easy the 
penetration of these new products. 

Branding of Passenger Cars and Off- Road Vehicles: 

The brand "BAIC" is familiar in the International 
Markets of various countries. This brand is much 
famous in the Chinese markets and BAIC group is one of 
the largest vehicle manufacturers in China specially the 
Off- Road vehicles. The products are already trial and 
tested in China. However, the brand is new for the 
Pakistani markets. 

The Company has started its brand awareness campaign 
on social media which is being proved very effective. 
Alongside, the company has also imported some units 
of these vehicles which are being tested on Pakistani 
Roads under local weather conditions. The results so far 
are encouraging. Therefore, the Company is optimistic 
about the quality of the vehicles and hopefully these 
vehicles will make their place in the market easily within 
a short span of time. 

Availability and Prices of Raw Material: 

The production of tractor wheel rims and sheet metal 
components of Three Wheelers is dependent on the 
availability of imported steel in the International 
market, therefore, any hurdle in its availability and 
volatility of its prices may adversely affect the 

production, input cost and supply of tractor wheel rims 
and sheet metal components of three wheelers. 

Further any failure or hurdle in supply of critical parts of 
three wheelers, which are procured from single source, 
may disturb the production of these products. To avoid 
such kind of situation, company carries higher level of 
stocks of those parts and continuously monitor the 
supply chain and keeps close contact with the supplier 
to solve any issue at an early stage. 

Currency Devaluation: 

Material devaluation of Pak Rupee, if any, may 
deteriorate the profitability of the Company. The 
company has a planning of availing the hedging and 
forward cover booking of foreign currency facility upon 
its availability (if it is feasible). 

Economic, Political and Law & Order conditions: 

Overall stable economic, political and law & order 
conditions in the country have a significant influence on 
the company's success. Any instability may have 
adverse effects on the company's revenue and 
profitability. 

General Market Conditions: 

The product range of the company is very successful 
and contributes to it in advantageous position 
compared with the competitors. Any aggressive pricing 
policy, introduction of new products and aggressive 
change in after sales policy by competitors may result in 
lower revenue, lower profitability or lower market share 
of the company. 

The company carries out continuous monitoring of 
competitors in order to recognize these risks at an early 
stage. Depending on the situation, product-specific and 
possible regionally different measures are taken to 
support the weaker markets. 

Regulatory and Taxation Policy: 

The automotive industry is subject to various 
governmental regulations. Any adverse and sudden 
change in the Governments' taxation and regulatory 
policy may have considerable impact on the company's 
future business. 
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SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

Sudden break down of Plant & Equipment: BONUS SHARES AND CASH DIVIDEND: 

Any sudden break down of manufacturing plant and 
equipment may lead to stoppage of production and can 
create a risk in achieving the desired business targets. In 
order to secure and enhance the long term future 
viability of production facilities, the equipment is 
continually maintained and modernized. 

The Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 
September 24, 2020 has recommended issuance of 30% 
bonus shares i.e. 30 ordinary shares for every 100 
ordinary shares subject to the approval of shareholders 
in the forthcoming 29th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company. 

The natural disasters are out of control of the company. 
However, the company takes appropriate precautionary 
measures, as far as possible, and also arrange insurance 
policies. 

However, no Cash Dividend has been recommended 
keeping in view the requirement of funds for the setting 
up of new project for the manufacturing/assembly of 
passenger cars and off-road vehicles. 

Financial Risks: FUTURE OUTLOOK; 

The Company is also exposed to various financial risks 
which have been stated in note 40 to the audited 
financial statements. 

Warranty cases: 

Warranty cases could arise if the quality of the products 
does not meet the requirements and regulations are 
not complied with or support is not provided in the 
required form in connection with product problems and 
product care. Possible claims with such risks are 
examined and if necessary appropriate measures are 
taken for the affected products. The company works 
continuously to maintain the product quality at required 
level to supply the best possible products to the 
customers. 

Uncertainties: 

Volatility in prices of raw materials. 
Government's new taxation and regulatory policies. 
Pak Rupee parity against foreign currencies. 
Law and order situation in the country. 
Supply of electricity to the industry. 
Political and economic stability. 
Inflation Rate. 
Borrowing cost. 

MATERIAL CHANGES: 

The adverse effects of COVID-19 pandemic are long 
lasting and it has changed the working environment and 
life style of the general people. The Government of 
Pakistan has taken suitable measures to control this 
pandemic and subsequent to the period under review, 
there is a gradual decrease in new cases of Corona virus 
in the country but it will take long time for the complete 
control. 

The economic conditions are not entirely in favour of 
industrialization and business growth although the 
Government has announced relief packages for certain 
classes of industry which will help to mobilize its allied 
industries and in turn the circulation of money will be in 
place. 

In addition to this, the SBP announced refinance 
scheme for wages & salary at 3% mark up rate initially 
for April-June and then extended to July- 
September 2020, refinance scheme for the purchase and 
BMR of plant & machinery at 5% per annum. The SBP 
also announced the deferment of repayment of 
principal amount of long term loans for a period of one 
year. The SBP has further reduced the interest rate 
gradually from 13.25% to 7% p.a. 

These measures will ease out the industrial sector to 
manage its cash flow and will also support to come out 
of this difficult situation. 

No material changes or commitments affecting the 
financial position of the company have taken place 
between the end of the financial year and the date of 
the Report except as disclosed in the Directors' Report 
and financial statements. 

Any further depreciation of Pak Rupee may have 
adverse effects on Company's profitability and sales 
volume. 

Your company is taking appropriate measures for the 
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continuity of its operation under the pandemic 
environment without compromising on the health and 
safety of its employees. 

subsequent to the period under review. The Company 
hope for the consistency in growth of this segment in 
next year. 

Three Wheeler Vehicles: Exports; 

Three wheelers' market is a growing market in the 
country. The Company is consistently introducing 
different models of three wheelers in passenger as well 
as in cargo loader categories keeping in view the market 
demand. The Company is committed to contribute in 
fulfilling the transportation needs of the people of 
Pakistan. 

The Company is focusing on the export of Three 
Wheelers and is receiving inquiries from different 
countries, out of which some are being culminated into 
orders. Repetition of orders from the international 
buyers is encouraging for the company. 

BUSINESS EXPANSION: 

The EV Three Wheeler would be the future of the 
country but it will grow gradually. The price of this 
product may be on higher side due to its expensive 
electric kit. 

The Company has successfully developed an EV Three 
Wheeler with two variants indigenously except for the 
electric kit. Its showcasing event was held in January 
2020 which was attended and appreciated by higher 
Government officials, business and social community. 
The Company is closely working with the concerned 
Government authorities to make this product 
successful. 

The Government has announced the details of custom 
tariffs, sales tax and other levies for EV Three Wheelers. 

The Company has applied to Engineering Development 
Board (EDB) for obtaining permission for the 
manufacturing / assembly of EV Three Wheelers. As 
soon as the approval is granted, the Company will make 
arrangements for the introduction of EV Three Wheeler 
in the market instantly. 

Passenger Cars and Off-Road Vehicles: 

The Company is in the process of setting up of a new 
project for the manufacturing /assembly of passenger 
cars and off-road vehicles in a technical collaboration 
with a renowned Chinese Automobile manufacturer 
under the brand name "BAIC". 

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic throughout the 
world including Pakistan has adversely affected the 
progress on the completion of this project and the 
Company could not achieve its completion date of June 
30, 2020. The delay was occurred due to pending 
shipments of some essential parts of equipments from 
China, travel restrictions and stoppage of work on the 
project due to lockdown announced by the Provincial 
Government. Now the management is working fast to 
complete this project at the earliest possible date. It is 
expected that the project will be completed, Insha 
Allah, by the end of March 31, 2021. 

The principle risks associated with this project are given 
below: 

The Company will continue its policy of Research and 
Development to innovate new products as well as to 
improve the quality of existing products to remain 
ahead of the competition. 

Looking ahead your Company expects a substantial 
revenue and profitability from this segment of business, 
INSHA ALLAH. 

Any adverse change in regulatory policies 
specifically auto development policy 2016-21. 
Product acceptability by the customers. 
Devaluation of Pak Rupee. 
Large number of competitors. 
Higher inflation rate. 
Availability of energy and its rising cost. 

Automotive Parts: ISSUANCE OF RIGHT SHARES: 

The tractor industry is also under pressure, however, 
the production of tractors has started to improve in 

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting 
held on February 07, 2020 had decided to issue 
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65.8418140217 Right Shares for every 100 ordinary 
shares held i.e. 65.8418140217% at par value of Rs. 10/- 
per share and Rs. 40/- as premium (i.e. Rs. 50/- per 
share) to raise funds of Rs. 710.00 million. These funds 
were generated to utilize for the procurement of plant 
& machinery, repayment of some portion of loan and to 
finance the working capital partially in respect of four 
wheeler project. The Company had utilized funds of 
Rupees 227.72 Million for the aforesaid purposes up to 
June 30, 2020. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

Corporate Social Responsibility is the continuing 
commitment by business to behave ethically and 
contribute to economic development while improving 
the quality of life of the workforce and their families as 
well as of the local community and society at large. 
During the year, the company carried out the following 
activities under CSR: 

Health: 

Company made contribution of Rs. 572,000/- to various 
hospitals that provide free of cost medical facilities to 
the poor or deserving people of the society. In addition 
to this, the Company also donated an amount of Rs. 
600,000/- on account of Pandemic COVID-19. 

In order to protect the employees from the pandemic 
COVID-19, the Company has formed SOP's and is taking 
all possible measures including wearing of masks, 
facilities for washing of hands, provision of sanitizers, 
walk-through gate with chlorine spray and maintaining 
a social distance. The Company has also formed a 
committee of employees who are continuously ensuring 
the compliance of SOP's of the Company. 

Education: 

Company donated a sum of Rs. 250,000/- to the 
institutions which are not only looking after the poor 
children but are also providing them education free of 
cost. 

Financial Assistance: 

Company spent Rs. 470,000/- on the welfare of 
deceased's workers families to meet their household 
and children's education expenses. 

Hajj Sponsorship: 

Every year the Company sends its 2 or 3 employees for 
performing Hajj which gives them spiritual satisfaction. 
Unfortunately, this year the Company could not send 
any employee to performed Hajj due to COVID-19. 

Employment of Disabled persons: 

Company creates employment opportunities for 
disabled persons to make them respectable and self 
sufficient in the society. Presently company has 
employed 27 disabled persons. 

Clean Drinking Water: 

Clean water is important for the health of workers. 
Company provides its workers clean filtered drinking 
water to keep them healthy and safe from different 
diseases. 

Workforce Training: 

Workforce development is very significant for the 
progress of industrial sector. The Company is 
committed for human resource development for the 
automotive sector. The new appointees are trained 
before they are sent to production line. Measures are 
also taken to improve their skills and performance. 

Safety: 

The Company takes different safety measures to safe 
guard its man force and working environment. 
Company provides safety goggles, Gloves, safety shoes, 
welding shields, etc, to its workers. Work places are 
cleaned properly to avoid slips and fall. Hazardous 
materials are stored in designated area. The Company 
also takes measures to avoid the occurrence of 
accidents. First aid facility, fire extinguishers, dedicated 
Company owned Ambulance Service has been made 
available for the emergency situation. 

Environment Protection: 

Wastages and scraps are properly managed and 
disposed off. Company's production scrap is also used 
as input material for making new components and in 
this way does not pollute the environment. 
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Contribution To National Exchequer: 
decrease in revenue and corresponding profitability as 
stated above. 

Being a responsible citizen, the company has made a 
contribution of Rs. 667.84 Million to National 
Exchequer during the year in form of income tax, sales 
tax, custom duties and excise as compared to 739.55 
million of last financial year. The decline is due to 
decrease in production and sales volumes. 

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic throughout the 
world including Pakistan has adversely impacted not 
only the lives of human beings but also disrupted the 
operation of businesses. After the massive increase in 
the affected cases of COVID-19 Pandemic in Pakistan, 
the Provincial and Federal Government of Pakistan 
announced temporary lock downs as a measure to 
reduce the further spread of the COVID-19. 
Accordingly, the Company shut down its plant as on 
March 24, 2020. However, in compliance with the 
relaxation announced by Governments, the Company 
resumed its operation partially as on April 15, 2020 and 
completely as on May 18, 2020 after ensuring the 
implementation of the necessary Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOPs) for the safety of employees and for 
the smooth and adequate continuation of its business. 

The Company's operation disruption, including the 
suspension of production, sales and other operational 
activities, resulted in a decline of sales revenue of 
around 7% and the corresponding profitability 
considering its pre-COVID-19 business trend. 

The COVID-19 has also adversely impacted the progress 
on setting up of Company's four wheeler project due to 
which the Company could not achieve its desired date 
of completion. 

Considering the applicable IFRS and going concern 
assumptions used for the preparation of these financial 
statements, the Company has assessed the accounting 
implications of this pandemic on these financial 
statements and determines that there has been no 
specifically quantifiable material impact of COVID-19 on 
the Company's financial statements except for the 

The State Bank of Pakistan announced various 
relaxations and refinance schemes to facilitate the 
business organizations to come out of the impact of 
pandemic, out of which the Company has availed the 
deferment of payment of principal amount of 
Diminishing Musharikah facility for a period of one year 
and refinance facility for the payment of wages & 
salaries of company's employees for the months April- 
June 2020 during the year and for the months July- 
September 2020 subsequent to the date of these 
financial statements. Complete detail has been stated in 
note 6 to these financial statements. 

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY: 

The Policy has been designed to enable the Company to 
attract, motivate and retain the executive and non- 
executive directors and to govern the Company 
successfully and to encourage the value addition. 

The remuneration including benefits for the Executive 
Directors including Chief Executive is determined by the 
Board of Directors in accordance with the procedure 
laid down in the policy. However, no meeting attending 
fee is paid to Executive Directors. 

No remuneration is paid to Non-Executive Directors 
except the meeting attending fee in accordance with 
the scale approved by the Board. The non-executive 
directors including independent directors who are 
residing outside Lahore are also paid travelling and 
accommodation expenses for attending the Board & 
Committees meetings. 

No director participates in the proceedings of the 
meeting for determining his own remuneration. 

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS: 

The election of directors of the Company was held as on 
March 19, 2020 in the Extra ordinary General Meeting 
of the Company and new Board was constituted for a 
period of three years commencing from March 20, 
2020. The names of nine (9) newly elected directors are 
given below: 
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1. Mr. Mian Asad Hameed 
2. Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed 
3. Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan 
4. Mr. Mian Muhammad Ali Hameed 
5. Mrs. Sana Suleyman 
6. Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir 
7. Mr. Sardar Ejaz Ishaq Khan 
8. Mr. Umair Ejaz 
9. Mr. Taha Mahmood 

The following directors of the Company retired as on 
March 20, 2020 after completion of their tenure of 
three years and they did not participate in election: 

1. Mr. Mian Zafar Hameed 
2. Mr. AhsanEjaz 
3. Mr. Anwar Ali 

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON, CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: 

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on March 
28, 2020 had made the following appointments for a 
period of three years commencing from March 28, 
2020: 

1. Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed as Chairperson 
No Extra remuneration will be paid to her 
except meeting attending fee 

2. Mr. Mian Asad Hameed as Chief Executive 
He will be paid monthly remuneration of Rs. 
2.20 million whereas other benefits will be paid 
to him as per Company Policy. No meeting 
attending fee will be paid to him 

3. Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan as Executive Director- 
Technical 
He will be paid monthly remuneration of Rs. 
1.050 million whereas other benefits will be 
paid to him as per Company Policy. No meeting 
attending fee will be paid to him 

4. Mr. Mian Muhammad Ali Hameed as 
Executive Director-Marketing 
He will be paid monthly remuneration of Rs. 
0.425 million whereas other benefits will be 
paid to him as per Company Policy. No meeting 
attending fee will be paid to him 

No director had participated in the proceedings of 
meeting for determining his own remuneration. 

COMPLIANCE WITH 
GOVERNANCE: 

CODE OF CORPORATE 

The board is committed to the principles of good 
corporate governance. The board is pleased to confirm 
that the Company is in compliance with Corporate and 
Financial Reporting Framework of the Code of 
Corporate Governance as are applicable for the current 
year and states that: 

• Presentation of Financial Statements The financial 
statements, prepared by the management of the 
company, present its state of affairs fairly, the 
results of its operations, cash flows and changes in 
equity; 

• Books of Account Proper books of account of the 
company have been maintained; 

• Accounting Policies Appropriate accounting 
policies have been consistently applied in 
preparation of financial statements and accounting 
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgement; 

• Compliance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) International Financial Reporting 
Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been 
followed in preparation of financial statements and 
departure there from (if any) has been adequately 
disclosed and explained; 

• Internal Control System The system of internal 
control is sound in design and has been effectively 
implemented and is being monitored continuously. 
The review will continue in future for the 
improvement in controls; 

• Going Concern There are no significant doubts 
upon the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern; 

• Best Practices of Corporate Governance There has 
been no material departure from the best practices 
of corporate governance, as are applicable to the 
Company for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

• Financial Data of Last Years Key operating and 
financial data of last six years is annexed as per 
annexure "A" 

Dividend.The Board of Directors, at their meeting held 
on September 24, 2020 has recommended issuance of 
30% bonus shares i.e. 30 ordinary shares for every 100 
ordinary shares subject to the approval of shareholders 
in the forthcoming 29th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company. 
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However, no Cash Dividend has been recommended 
keeping in view the requirement of funds for the setting 
up of new project for the manufacturing/assembly of 
passenger cars and off-road vehicles. 
Outstanding Statutory Dues:The outstanding statutory 
dues are given in notes to the financial statements. 

Significant Plans and Decisions: To explore new 
business opportunities in automobile sector. 

Code of Business Conduct: The Company has prepared a 
"Code of Business Conduct" and has ensured that 
appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it 
throughout the company along with its supporting 
policies and procedures. It has also been placed on the 
company's web site. 

Composition of Board: 
The total number of directors are (9) nine as per the 
following: 

a. Male : (7) seven 
b. Female: (2) two 

The composition of board is as follows: 

a. Independent Directors: 
Mr. Sardar Ejaz Ishaq Khan 
Mr. Umair Ejaz 
Mr. Taha Mahmood 

b. Non-Executive Directors: 
Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed 
Mrs. Sana Suleyman 
Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir 

c. Executive directors including Chief Executive: 
Mr. Mian Asad Hameed 
Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan 
Mr. Mian Muhammad Ali Hameed 

d. Female Directors: 
Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed 
Mrs. Sana Suleyman 

Committees of the Board: 

Represents that the director is chairman of the 
respective committee 
Represents that the director is member of the 
respective committee 

Attendance in Board and Committees' Meetings; The 
number of board and committees' meetings held during 
the year and attendance by each director is given 
below: 

Name of Directors Board Board Audit 
Committee 

HR&R 
Committee 

Total Meetings Held 5 5 3 
Mr.Mian Asad Hameed 5 - 1 
Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed 5 - - 
Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan 5 - 1 
Mr. Mian Muhammad Ali 
Hameed 

5 - " 

Mrs. Sana Suleyman 5 5 - 
Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir 5 - 3 
Mr. Sardar Ejaz Ishaq Khan 
elected on. 20.03.2020 

2 - - 

Mr.Umair Ejaz 
elected on 20.03.2020 

2 1 1 

Mr.Taha Mahmood 
elected on 20.03.2020 

2 1 1 

Mr.Mian Zafar Hameed 
retired on 20.03.2020 

3 - - 

Mr. AnwarAli 
retired on 20.03.2020 

3 4 2 

Mr. Ahsan Ejaz 
retired on 20.03.2020 

3 4 " 

No meeting of Nomination Committee and Risk 
Management Committee was held during the year. 

Leave of absence was granted to the Director who could 
not attend the Committee Meeting. 

Directors' Training Programs during the year: The 
Company is in compliance of certification of Directors 
Training Programme. Out of nine, four directors have 
acquired the Directors' Training Programme (DTP) from 
SECP approved Institutions whereas two directors fall 
under the exemption criteria of Listed Companies (Code 
of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019 and also 
obtained exemption from SECP. 

Name of 
Members 

Board 
Audit 

Committee 

HR&R 
Committee 

Nomination 
Committee 

Risk 
Management 
Committee 

Mr.Umair Ejaz ** * ** 
Mr.Taha 
Mahmood ♦ ** * 

Mrs. Sana Suleyman * 
Mr. Humza 

AmjadWazir * • 
Mr. Mian Asad 

Hameed * ** 
Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan * 
Mr.Mian 
Muhammad 
Ali Hameed 

• 

Pattern of Shareholding: The pattern of shareholding is 
annexed as per annexure "B". 
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Trading in Company's Shares by Directors, executives 
and their spouses and minor children during the year: 
Purchase, sale of Shares and change in beneficial 
ownership: 

Name of Directors, Purchase/ Sale 
Executives and Spouses Right shares 
Mr. Mian Asad Hameed 5,944,735 
Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed 896,324 - 
Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan 635,779 - 
Mr. Mian Muhammad Ali Hameed 1,648,784 - 
Mrs. Sana Suleyman 9,402 - 
Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir 435 
Mr. Sardar Ejaz Ishaq Khan 338 - 
Mr. Umair Ejaz 373 - 
Mr.Taha Mahmood 339 - 
Mr. Mian Zafar Hameed retired 5,925 2,000 
on 20.03.2020 
Mr. Anwar Ali retired 431 
on 20.03.2020 
Mr.Ahsan Ejaz retired 783 - 
on 20.03.2020 
Mr.Arshad Mahmood 9,828 - 
Mrs. Naghmana Saeed 242,489 - 
Mrs. Amina Humza Wazir 15,637 - 
Mr.Muhammad Suleyman Khan 15,670 
Mrs. Amberen Zafar Hameed 982 - 
Mrs. Navin Anwar Ali 982 - 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD, COMMITTEES 
AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS: 

EMPLOYEES RELATIONS: 

The management and employees relationship is very 
cordial and it is hoped that both will work with the 
same spirit to achieve the desired goals of the 
Company. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

We would like to place on record our appreciation for 
the untiring efforts, teamwork and dedication shown by 
the Company's employees during the year under 
review. 

We would also like to express our gratitude to our 
valued shareholders, customers, suppliers and financial 
institutions for their continued support to the Company. 

Lahore: 
September 24,2020 

For and on behalf of the Board 

The board has put in place a mechanism for the 
performance evaluation of its own, its committees and 
individual directors. 

During the year, FIR&R Committee has undertaken the 
evaluation process. The results were placed before the 
board for its consideration and necessary action. 

Mian Asad Hameed 
(Chief Executive) 

Saeed Iqbal Khan 
(Director) 

AUDITORS: 

The present auditors retire and being eligible offers 
themselves for reappointment. The Audit Committee 
and the Board of Directors have also recommended for 
their reappointment on the following remunerations: 

(Rupees) 

a. 
b. 
c. 

d. 

Annual Audit 
Half yearly review 
Statement of Compliance with Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 
Certificate under CDC Regulation 
and Report on Free-float of shares 

810,000 
171,500 

15,000 

15,000 
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SUMMARY OF LAST SIX YEARS' FINANCIAL RESULTS ANNEXURE-A 

2016 I 2015 | Description 

RUPEES 

Profit & Loss Account: 
Turnover 2,891,754,502 3,218,523,838 3,968,217,110 3,618,144,493 2,873,866,541 2,473,657,974 

Gross Profit 293,014,141 330,722,331 444,912,891 379,481,004 288,686,425 234,215,035 

Operating Profit 89,866,167 132,481,095 247,993,771 202,980,483 149,453,460 104,654,299 

Profit before taxation 40,773,628 111,844,513 254,678,642 204,113,745 153,957,796 99,655,475 

Profit after taxation 27,633,547 81,997,158 186,005,018 142,821,941 107,669,738 73,682,904 

Statement of Financial Position 

Paid up share capital 357,668,420 215,668,420 215,668,420 179,723,680 179,723,680 179,723,680 

Capital reserve - Share premium account 557,406,192 - - - - - 

Accumulated Profit 853,884,500 829,038,827 741,695,967 594,064,626 509,691,079 437,195,803 

Fixed Capital Expenditure 1,318,409,750 998,187,948 708,814,230 533,057,992 244,653,763 250,828,978 

Other long term assets 31,003,008 28,215,108 21,119,673 17,256,294 14,894,352 11,414,241 

Net current assets / (liabilities) 862,362,360 388,941,345 387,033,041 361,809,654 548,424,835 461,424,514 

Long term liabilities 459,315,412 370,637,154 159,602,557 138,335,634 118,558,191 106,748,250 

Significant Ratios: 
Gross profit ratio % 10.13 10.28 11.21 10.49 10.05 9.47 

Profit/{loss) before tax ratio % 1.41 3.48 6.42 5.64 5.36 4.03 

Fixed assets turnover ratio % 219.34 322.44 559.84 678.75 1,174.67 986.19 

Price earning ratio - times 130.45 72.35 33.04 41.36 6.26 11.27 

Return on capital employed % (Before 1 & Tax) 4.03 9.36 22.20 22.25 18.50 14.46 

Return on equity ratio (after Tax) 1.56% 7.85% 19.43% 18.46% 15.62% 11.94% 

Market value per share (PSX) Rs. 124.59 219.85 284.98 273.93 31.25 38.50 

Break up value per share 49.46 48.44 44.39 43.05 38.36 34.33 

Long term Debt: Equity ratio 26:74 35 :65 17:83 18:82 17:83 17:83 

Current ratio 2.47 :1 1.70: 1 1.79 :1 1.73 : 1 2.48 :1 2.26 : 1 

Interest cover ratio - times 1.64 5.60 53.02 115.06 56.39 14.39 

Cash Dividend % 
Interim Dividend 
Final Dividend 

- - - 12.50 10.00 
15.00 

10.00 
10.00 

Scrip Dividend % 30.00 - - 20.00 - - 

Earnings per share Rs. 0.96 3.04 8.62 6.62 4.99 3.42 

Note: 
Earnings Per Share, consequently Price Earning ratio, has been adjusted to reflect the effect of Right Issue for the year 2020 and 2019. 
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FORM-34 ANNEXURE - B 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 (SECTION 227 (2)(f)) 

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON JUNE 30, 2020 
SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

Registration Number: 0025184 
NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDING TOTAL PERCENTAGE 

SHAREHOLDERS FROM TO SHARES HELD % 
583 1 - 100 36,504 0.10% 
820 101 - 500 277,115 0.77% 
511 501 - 1,000 439,265 1.23% 
750 1,001 - 5,000 1,705,724 4.77% 
130 5,001 - 10,000 950,085 2.66% 
31 10,001 - 15,000 391,817 1.10% 
20 15,001 - 20,000 346,022 0.97% 
15 20,001 - 25,000 364,737 1.02% 
8 25,001 - 30,000 224,451 0.63% 
3 30,001 - 35,000 100,361 0.28% 
8 35,001 - 40,000 313,336 0.88% 
1 40,001 - 45,000 42,500 0.12% 
7 45,001 - 50,000 338,000 0.95% 
7 50,001 - 55,000 375,541 1.05% 
2 55,001 - 60,000 113,615 0.32% 
2 70,001 - 75,000 149,649 0.42% 
2 80,001 - 85,000 161,136 0.45% 
1 85,001 - 90,000 89,795 0.25% 
2 95,001 - 100,000 198,000 0.55% 
1 105,001 - 110,000 110,000 0.31% 
1 120,001 - 125,000 123,789 0.35% 
2 130,001 - 135,000 263,700 0.74% 
2 150,001 - 155,000 304,746 0.85% 
1 160,001 - 165,000 161,000 0.45% 
1 170,001 - 175,000 173,167 0.48% 
1 610,001 - 615,000 610,780 1.71% 
1 995,001 - 1,000,000 1,000,000 2.80% 
1 1,035,001 - 1,040,000 1,035,200 2.89% 
1 1,105,001 - 1,110,000 1,108,300 3.10% 
1 1,275,001 - 1,280,000 1,278,000 3.57% 
1 1,600,001 - 1,605,000 1,601,396 4.48% 
1 2,255,001 - 2,260,000 2,257,654 6.31% 
1 4,150,001 - 4,155,000 4,152,944 11.61% 
1 14,965,001 - 14,970,000 14,968,513 41.85% 

2,920 35,766,842 100.00% 

/VlilL I 
Mian Asad Hameed 
(Chief Executive) 
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS NUMBER OF 
SHARES HELD 

SHAREHOLDING 

I Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their Spouse And Minor Children 
i. Mr. Mian Asad Hameed 14,968,513 41.85% 
ii. Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed 2,257,654 6.31% 
iii. Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan 1,601,396 4.48% 
iv. Mr. Mian Muhammad Ali Hameed 4,152,944 11.61% 
v. Mrs. Sana Suleyman 23,682 0.07% 
vi. Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir 1,097 0.00% 
vii. Mr. Sardar Ejaz Ishaq Khan 852 0.00% 
viii. Mr. Umair Ejaz 940 0.00% 
ix. Mr. Taha Mahmood 854 0.00% 
X. Mrs. Naghmana Saeed W/o Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan 610,780 1.71% 
xi. Mr. Muhammad Suleyman Khan spouse of Mrs. Sana Suleyman 39,470 0.11% 
xii. Mrs. Amina Humza Wazir W/o Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir 39,387 0.11% 

n Associated Companies, Undertakings & Related Parties Nil - 
m NIT and ICR Nil - 
IV Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Instituitions Nil - 

V Insurance Companies 
i. DAWOOD FAMILY TAKAFUL LIMITED 22,500 0.06% 

VI Modarabas and Mutual Funds 
i. CDC - TRUSTEE PICIC INVESTMENT FUND 25,000 0.07% 
ii. CDC - TRUSTEE PICIC GROWTH FUND 25,000 0.07% 
iii. B.R.R. GUARDIAN MODARABA 133,600 0.37% 
iv. CDC - TRUSTEE HBL - STOCK FUND 25,000 0.07% 
v. CDC - TRUSTEE HBL EQUITY FUND 150,900 0.42% 
vi. CDC - TRUSTEE HBL IPF EQUITY SUB FUND 8,000 0.02% 
vii. CDC - TRUSTEE HBL PF EQUITY SUB FUND 10,100 0.03% 
viii. CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST CAPITAL MUTUAL FUND 5,000 0.01% 
ix. CDC - TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND 75,000 0.21% 
x. CDC - TRUSTEE ABL PENSION FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND 165 0.00% 
xi. M/s. ABA ALI HABIB SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED - MF 1,000 0.00% 
xii. MCBFSL - TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 1,100 0.00% 

vn Shareholders Holding 10% (other than above S.No. I) Nil - 
vm General Public 

a. Local 10,850,145 30.34% 
b. Foreign Nil - 

IX Others (to be specified) 
Joint Stock Companies 579,343 1.62% 
Cooperative Societies 6,820 0.02% 
Employees Provident Fund 52,600 0.15% 
Investment Companies 98,000 0.27% 

TOTAL 35,766,842 lOO.OQo/o 

Mian Asad Hameed Saeed Iqbal Khan 
(Chief Executive) (Director) 
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VALUE ADDITION 

STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION AND ITS DISTRIBUTION 

June 30, 
2020 

% 
June 30, 

2019 

Rupees 

Gross Sales 
Other Operation Income 
Total Income 

Addition of material and services and other expenses 

3,391,189,678 
14,969,028 

3,406,158,706 

2,252,123,135 

3,780,417,991 
3,656,208 

3,784,074,199 

2,576,500,589 

TOTAL VALUE ADDITION 1,154,035,571 1,207,573,610 

VALUE DISTRIBUTION 

To Government 
Worker Welfare Fund 
Sales Tax 
Income Tax & Custom Duties 

To Employees 
Workers' profits participation fund 
Salaries, wages and benefits 

952,260 
499,435,176 
137,398,975 

2,233,024 
422,321,022 

637,786,411 55% 

424,554,046 37% 

2,193,740 
561,894,153 
166,506,627 
730,594,520 

6,080,459 
364,608,683 
370,689,142 

61% 

31% 

To Finance Providers 
Financial charges to providers of finance 64,061,567 6% 24,292,790 2% 

To Shareholders 
Dividend to shareholders 

Retained in / (Distributed) from Business 
Un-appropriated Profit 

TOTAL VALUE DISTRIBUTION 

107,300,530 9% 

(79,666,983) -7% 

0% 

81,997,158 7% 

1,154,035,571 100% 1,207,573,610 100% 

■ Government 
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
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& Co. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditor's Review Report to the Members of Sazgar Engineering 
Works Limited 

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of 
Sazgar Engineering Works Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2020 in accordance 
with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of 
the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to 
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily 
to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company 
to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the 
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit 
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal 
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal 
controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and 
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this 
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors 
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the 
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material 
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the 
year ended June 30, 2020. 

H.Y.K and Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Lahore 
September 24, 2020 

Engagement Partner: Muhammad Yousaf 

Lahore Office: 
321 Upper Mall, Lahore. 
Phone: 92 42 3575 5530 
Phone: 92 42 3578 9331 www.hyk.com.pk | info@hyk.com.pk 

Islamabad Office: 
House No. 4, Street No. 60 
F-7/4 Islamabad. 
Phone: 051 265 4334 
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SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED   

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) 
REGULATIONS, 2019 

NAME OF COMPANY: SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 
YEAR ENDED: JUNE 30, 2020 

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: 

1. The total number of directors are (9) nine as per the following: 
a. Male: (7) seven 
b. Female: (2) two 

2. The composition of board is as follows:  
i Independent Directors Mr. Sardar Ejaz Ishaq Khan, Mr. Umair Ejaz, Mr. Taha Mahmood 
ii Non-Executive Directors Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed, Mrs. Sana Suleyman, Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir 
hi Executive Directors Mr. Mian Asad Hameed, Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan, Mr. Mian Muhammad Ali 

Hameed 
iv Female Directors Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed, Mrs. Sana Suleyman 

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, including 
this company. 

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it 
throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures. 

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the company. 
The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or 
updating is maintained by the Company. 

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the 
board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations. 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and, in her absence, by a director elected by the Board 
for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, 
recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board. 

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the 
Act and these Regulations. 

9. Directors' Training program requirements have been complied with. No Director obtained the training during the year. 

10. The board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including 
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations. 

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board. 

12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:  
S.No. Name of Committees Name of Members and Chairman 
a) Audit Committee Chairman: Mr. Umair Ejaz 

Members: Mrs. Sana Suleyman , Mr. Taha Mahmood 
b) HR and Remuneration 

Committee 
Chairman: Mr. Taha Mahmood 
Members: Mr. Mian Asad Hameed, Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir, Mr. Umair Ejaz 

c) Nomination Committee Chairman: Mr. Mian Asad Hameed 
Members: Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan, Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir 

d) Risk Management Committee Chairman: Mr. Umair Ejaz 
Members: Mr. Mian Muhammad Ali Hameed, Mr. Taha Mahmood 
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13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for 
compliance. 

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following: 

Committee Frequency 
Audit Committee Quarterly, Yearly 
HR and Remuneration Committee Yearly, as and when require 
Nomination Committee Y early, as and when require 
Risk Management Committee Yearly, as and when require 

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function. 

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality 
control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board 
of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IF AC) 
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the 
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent 
children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the 
company. 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in 
accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they 
have observed IF AC guidelines in this regard. 

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Lahore: Mian Asad Hameed Saeed Iqbal Khan 
September 24,2020 (Chief Executive) (Director) 
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AWvvM GLOBALtm 

HYK 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Sazgar Engineering Works Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Sazgar Engineering Works Limited (the 
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2020, and the statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained 
all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary 
for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part 
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and 
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2020 and of 
the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then 
ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable 
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Lahore Office: Islamabad Office: 
321 Upper Mall, Lahore. House No. 4, Street No. 60 
Phone: 92 42 3575 5530 ■ ,. * ™ , , F-7/4 Islamabad. 
Phone: 92 42 3578 9331 www.hyk.com.pk | info@hyk.com.pk Phone: 051 2654334 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

S. No. Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit 

Impact of COVID-19 (Refer note 44 to 
the annexed financial statements) 

Due to the pandemic of Covid-19 in 
Pakistan, Provincial and Federal 
Government announced temporarily 
lockdown as a measure of reduce the 
spread of the Covid-19. Accordingly, 
the Company shut down its plant as on 
March 24, 2020. However, in 
compliance with the relaxation 
announced by the Governments, the 
Company resumed its operation 
partially as on April 15, 2020 and 
completely as on May 18, 2020. This 
affected the overall audit strategy, the 
allocation of resources in the audit and 
directing the efforts of the engagement 
team. 

In relation to the accounting and 
reporting obligations, management 
assessed the significant areas for 
incorporating COVID-19 impact in the 
financial statements by considering the 
applicable IFRS and going concern 
assumptions used. 

The COVID-19 pandemic is a significant 
development during the year having 
the most significant impact on audit 
strategy and its execution and involved 
assessment of significant management 
judgments in the preparation of 
financial statements. Therefore, we 
considered it to be a key audit matter. 

Our audit procedures amongst others 
included the following: 

i. Obtained an overall understanding of 
the changes in financial reporting 
process and underlying controls in order 
to determine the appropriate audit 
strategy; 

ii. Assessed the reasonableness of the 
forward looking factors under the Covid- 
19 situation used by the management in 
preparing Expected Credit Loss Model as 
per IFRS 9. 

ill. Evaluated whether any impairment 
indicators exist that could trigger 
impairment for tangible and intangible 
assets; 

iv. Obtained the computation of NRV of 
inventory and checked its 
reasonableness; 

v. Evaluated management's assessment as 
to whether any provisions were 
required to be recorded as a result of 
COVID-19; 

vi. Reviewed the key debt covenants of the 
loan agreement and checked that the 
company is in compliance with these 
covenants, 

vii. Evaluated management's going concern 
assessment by reviewing the approved 
budget/ future cash flow forecast and 
assessed whether going concern 
assumption is appropriate. 

viii. Assessed the adequacy of the 
disclosures made by the Company under 
the applicable financial reporting 
framework. 

Lahore Office: Islamabad Office: 
321 Upper Mall, Lahore. House No. 4, Street No. 60 
Phone: 92 42 3575 5530 , . ■ r . > F-7/4 Islamabad. 
Phone: 92 42 3578 9331 WWW.hyk.COm.pk | info@hyk.COm.pk Phone: 051 265 4334 
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Capitalization of Property, Plant and 
Equipment and Capital Work in 
Progress 

Refer notes 3.3 and 15 to the financial 
statements. 
The Company has made significant 
capital expenditure on four-wheeler 
projects. 
We identified capitalization of 
property, plant and equipment as key 
audit matter because there is a risk that 
amounts being capitalized may not 
meet the capitalization criteria. 

Our audit procedures to assess the capitalization 
of property, plant and equipment and Capital 
Work in Progress, amongst others, include the 
following, 

i. Understanding the design and 
implementation of management 
controls over capitalization and 
performing tests of control over 
authorization of capital expenditure and 
accuracy of its recording in the system; 

ii. Tested on sample basis, the costs 
incurred on assets with supporting 
documentation and contracts. 

iii. Assessed the nature of costs Incurred 
for the capital assets through testing, on 
sample basis, of amounts recorded and 
considering whether the expenditure 
meets the criteria for capitalization as 
per the accounting policy and applicable 
accounting standards; and 

iv. Inspected supporting documents for the 
date of capitalization when asset was 
ready for its intended use to assess 
whether depreciation commenced and 
further capitalization of costs ceased 
from that date and assessing the useful 
life assigned by management including 
testing the calculation of related 
depreciation. 

v. Evaluated whether any impairment 
indicators exist that could trigger 
impairment for tangible assets; 

vi. Assessed the adequacy of the related 
disclosures made in the financial 
statements in this respect with regard to 
the applicable accounting and reporting 
standards. 

Lahore Office: Islamabad Office: 
321 Upper Mall, Lahore. House No. 4, Street No. 60 
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Contingent Liabilities 

Refer notes 14,1 to the financial 
statements. 

The Company has significant 
contingent liabilities in respect of 
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Punjab Social 
Security Institution, The Employees' 
Old Age Benefits Institution and other 
claim matters, which are pending 
adjudication at various appellate 
forums. 

Contingencies require management to 
make judgments and estimates in 
relation to the interpretation of laws, 
statutory rules, regulations and the 
probability of outcome and financial 
impact, if any, on the Company for 
disclosure and recognition and 
measurement of any provision that 
may be required against such 
contingencies. Due to the significance 
of the amounts involved, inherent 
uncertainties with respect to the 
outcome of the matters and use of 
significant management judgments and 
estimates to assess the same including 
related financial impacts, we have 
considered contingent liabilities as a 
key audit matter 

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included 
the following: 

i) Obtained an understanding of the 
Company's process and controls over 
litigations through meetings with 
management and review of minutes of 
the meetings of Board of Directors and 
Board Audit Committee; 

ii) Obtained and assessed details of the 
pending tax and other legal matters and 
discussed the same with the Company's 
management; 

ill) Circularized confirmations to the 
Company's external legal and tax 
counsels for their views on legal 
position of the Company in relation to 
these pending matters; 

iv) Involved internal tax professionals to 
assess management's conclusion on 
contingent tax and other legal matters 
and evaluated consistency of such 
conclusions with the views of 
management and external tax and legal 
counsels engaged by the Company; 

v) Checked correspondence of the 
Company with the relevant authorities 
including judgments or orders passed 
by the competent authorities in relation 
to the issues involved or matters which 
have similarities with the issues 
involved; and 

vi) Assessed the adequacy of the related 
disclosures made in the financial 
statements in this respect with regard 
to the applicable accounting and 
 reporting standards.  

Lahore Office: Islamabad Office: 
321 Upper Mall, Lahore. House No. 4, Street No. 60 
Phone: 92 42 3575 5530 . . • „ , , F-7/4 Islamabad. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
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involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 
(XIX of 2017); 

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes 
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in 
agreement with the books of account and returns; 
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(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the 
purpose of the Company's business; and 

(d) No zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980). 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Muhammad 
Yousaf 

H.Y.K and Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Lahore 

Date: September 24, 2020 

Lahore Office: 
321 Upper Mall, Lahore. 
Phone; 92 42 3575 5530 
Phone: 92 42 3578 9331 www.hyk.com.pk | info@hyk.com.pk 

Islamabad Office: 
House No. 4, Street No. 60 
F-7/4 Islamabad. 
Phone: 051 265 4334 
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AS AT JUNE 30, 2020 

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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DIRECTOR 

June 30, 
Note 2020 

Rupees 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 

Authorized share capital 5.1 500,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 5.2 357,668,420 
Capital reserve - Share premium account 5.3 557,406,192 
Revenue reserve - Un-appropriated Profit 853,884,500 

1,768,959,112 
LIABILITIES 
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Long term financing 6 249,407,861 
Lease Liabilities 7 7,800,000 
Deferred liabilities 8 202,107,551 
Deferred Grant 9 5,170,602 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Trade and other payables 10 413,569,969 
Unclaimed dividend 1,443,792 
Profit accrued on loans and other payables 11 40,073,361 
Short term borrowings 12 - 
Current portion of long term liabilities 13 131,637,943 

586,725,065 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 14 - 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,820,170,190 

ASSETS 

NON CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, plant and equipment 15 1,318,332,806 
Intangible assets 16 76,944 
Long term loan and advances 17 27,490,153 
Long term deposits 18 3,512,855 
Deferred taxation 8 21,670,008 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Stores, spares and loose tools 19 5,281,932 
Stock-in-trade 20 660,110,327 
Trade debts 21 122,597,252 
Loans & advances 22 16,101,921 
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 23 66,248,138 
Other receivables 24 129,928,799 
Cash and bank balances 25 448,819,055 

1,449,087,424 
TOTAL ASSETS 2,820,170,190 

June 30, 
2019 

Rupees 

500,000,000 

215,668,420 

829,038,827 
1,044,707,247 

201,669,995 

168,967,159 

515,981,079 
1,496,234 

15,695,208 

22,401,560 
555,574,081 

1,970,918,482 

998,079,388 
108,560 

24,895,253 
3,319,855 

2,992,529 
645,847,730 
115,605,575 

16,220,005 
48,610,555 

109,271,671 
5,967,361 

944,515,426 
1,970,918,482 

MUHAMMAD ATIF RAO 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 



SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

June 30, June 30, 
2020 2019 

Note Rupees Rupees 

Sales - Net 26 2,891,754,502 3,218,523,838 

Cost of sales 27 2,598,740,361 2,887,801,507 

Gross Profit 293,014,141 330,722,331 

Distribution cost 28 96,378,289 93,465,103 

Administrative expenses 29 100,432,901 93,313,934 

Other operating expenses 30 6,336,784 11,462,199 
203,147,974 198,241,236 

89,866,167 132,481,095 

Other income 31 14,969,028 3,656,208 

Operating profit before finance cost 104,835,195 136,137,303 

Finance cost 32 64,061,567 24,292,790 

Profit before taxation 40,773,628 111,844,513 

Taxation 33 13,140,081 29,847,355 

Profit after taxation 27,633,547 81,997,158 

Restated 

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted 34 0.96 3.04 

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

1. 
MIAN ASAP HAMEED 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
SAEED IQBAL KHAN MUHAMMAD ATIF RAO 

DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
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SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Note 

June 30, 
2020 

Rupees 

June 30, 
2019 

Rupees 

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION FOR THE YEAR 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or (loss) 

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or (loss) 
- Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 

27,633,547 81,997,158 

8.1.6 (2,787,874) 

24,845,673 

5,345,702 

87,342,860 

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Sil — 
MIAN ASAP HAMEED 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
SAEED IQBAL KHAN 

DIRECTOR 
MUHAMMAD ATIF RAO 

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
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SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Share 
Capital 
Rupees 

Share 
Premium 
Account 

Un-appropriated Total 
Profit 

Rupees Rupees 

Balance as at June 30, 2018 215,668,420 741,695,967 957,364,387 

Comprehensive Income for the year 
Profit after taxation 
Other Comprehensive Income 

Total comprehensive income for the 
year ended June 30, 2019 

Balance as at June 30, 2019 215,668,420 

81,997,158 
5,345,702 

87,342,860 

829,038,827 

81,997,158 
5,345,702 

87,342,860 

1,044,707,247 

Balance as at June 30, 2019 

Transaction with owner, recognize directly in equity 

Issuance of Right Shares 
Right Shares Issuance Expenses 

Total Transaction with owner, recognized directly in equity 

215,668,420 

142,000,000 

142,000,000 

568,000,000 
(10,593,808) 

557,406,192 

829,038,827 1,044,707,247 

710,000,000 
(10,593,808) 

699,406,192 

Comprehensive Income for the period 
Profit after taxation 
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) 

Total comprehensive income for the 
year ended June 30, 2020 

Balance as at June 30, 2020 357,668,420 557,406,192 

27,633,547 
(2,787,874) 

24,845,673 

853,884,500 

27,633,547 
(2,787,874) 

24,845,673 

1,768,959,112 

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Sil ^(3— 
MIAN ASAP HAMEED 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
SAEED IQBAL KHAN 

DIRECTOR 
MUHAMMAD ATIF RAO 

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
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SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED   

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

June 30, 
2020 

June 30, 
2019 

Note Rupees Rupees 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash generated from operations 35 
Finance cost paid 

Income tax paid/deducted at source 
Employees retirement benefit - Gratuity Paid 
Workers Profit Participation Fund Paid 
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities 

6,211,752 
(39,683,414) 

(57,373,495) 
(2,876,090) 
(6,080,459) 

(99,801,706) 

142,592,435 
(11,446,943) 

(47,774,133) 
(3,745,443) 

(24,793,863) 
54,832,053 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Property, Plant and Equipment Purchased 
Increase in long term security deposits 
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 

(342,567,018) 
(193,000) 

7,020,000 

(310,314,270) 
(321,150) 

2,500,000 

Net cash used in investing activities (335,740,018) (308,135,420) 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceed from Right Share issuance 
Payment of Right Share issuance Expenses 
Proceeds from long term financing 
Proceeds from short term borrowings 

Repayment of short term borrowings 
Profit on bank deposits 
Dividend Paid 
Net cash generated from financing activities 

710,000,000 
(10,593,808) 
162,144,850 

2,240,603,700 
(2,240,603,699) 

16,894,817 
(52,442) 

878,393,418 

224,071,555 
1,654,161,655 

(1,654,161,654) 

(125,631) 
223,945,925 

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 442,851,694 (29,357,442) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 5,967,361 35,324,803 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 36 448,819,055 5,967,361 

The annexed notes 1 to 

/VSJJL! 
MIAN ASAP HAMEED 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

48 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

SAEED IQBAL KHAN MUHAMMAD ATIF RAO 
DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
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SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

Sazgar Engineering Works Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on September 21, 1991 as a Private Limited Company and 

converted into a Public Limited Company on November 21, 1994. The Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. 

The Company is engaged in the manufacture and sale of automobiles, automotive parts and household electric appliances. The 

registered office of the company is situated at 88- Ali Town, Thokar Niaz Baig, Raiwind Road, Lahore. The three wheeler, wheel rim 

and household electric appliances manufacturing facility is located at 18 K.m Raiwind Road, Lahore and four wheeler manufacturing 

facility, which is under construction, is situated at Mouza Bhai kot, near tablighi ijtama, Raiwind, Lahore. 

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

2.1 Statement of Compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 

Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of; International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFR Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the companies Act, 2017 and 

provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies 

Act, 2017 differ from the IFR Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed. 

2.2 Basis of Measurement 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the recognition of employees 
retirement benefits at present value. 

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency 

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupee, which is the functional and presentation currency of the Company. 

2.4 New accounting standards, IFRIC interpretations, amendments to the published approved accounting standards and Companies 
Act, 2017 that are effective in current year: 

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards are effective for accounting periods 
beginning on July 01, 2019 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's operations and 
are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements, except for the following: 

2.4.1 The company has adopted IFRS-16 "Leases" which is effective for accounting period beginning on or after July 01, 2019 as notified 

by the SECP, which replaces existing guidance on accounting for leases, including IAS 17 'Leases', IFRIC 4 'Determining whether an 

arrangement contains a Lease', SIC-15 'Operating Leases- Incentive' and SIC-27 'Evaluating the substance of transactions involving 

the legal form of a Lease'. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on statement of financial position, lease accounting model for lessees. A 

lessee recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right-of-use of the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its 

obligations to make lease payments. Lessor accounting remains similar to the previous standard i.e. lessors continue to classify 

leases as finance or operating leases. The Company has assessed that the application of this standard does not have any material 

financial impact on the financial statements of the Company. 

2.4.2 The company has adopted IFRIC 23, "Uncertainty over income tax treatments" which clarifies how the recognition and 
measurement requirements of IAS 12 'Income taxes', are applied where there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. 
IFRIC 23 explains how to recognise and measure deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities where there is 
uncertainty over a tax treatment. 

Annual Report 2020|49 



SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

An uncertain tax treatment is any tax treatment applied by an entity where there is uncertainty over whether that treatment will 

be accepted by the tax authority. For example, a decision to claim a deduction for a specific expense or not to include a specific 

item of income in a tax return is an uncertain tax treatment if its acceptability is uncertain under tax law. IFRIC 23 applies to all 

aspects of income tax accounting where there is an uncertainty regarding the treatment of an item, including taxable profit or loss, 

the tax bases of assets and liabilities, tax losses and credits and tax rates. While there are no new disclosure requirements, entities 

are reminded of the general requirement to provide information about judgements and estimates made in preparing the financial 

statements. The Company is already in compliance with the requirements of this IFRIC. 

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations have no impact on the Company's financial statements, 
except for increased disclosures in certain cases. 

2.5 New accounting standards, IFRIC interpretations and amendments to the published approved accounting standards that are not 
effective in current year and have not been early adopted by the Company: 

The following standards, amendments to the approved accounting standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the 
companies having accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2020 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any 
significant effect on the Company's operations: 

Standards or Interpretation Effective date 

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements-Definition of Material January 01,2021 

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors-Definition of Material January 01, 2021 

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use January 01, 2021 

The above standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to 
have significant impact on the Company's financial statements except for the increased disclosures in certain cases. 

There are certain other new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Company's 
accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2020 but are considered not to be relevant or will not have any significant effect on 
the Company's operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements. 

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

3.1 The Significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below and have been 

consistently applied to all the years presented. 

Employee benefits 

Defined benefit plan 

Defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined contribution plan. 

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees. The provision is made on the basis of 
actuarial valuation by using the projected unit credit method. In calculating the Company's obligation in respect of a plan, any 
actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the statement of comprehensive income. 

3.2 Compensated Absences 

The Company accounts for compensated absences of its employees on un-availed balance of leave in the period in which the leave 
is earned. 
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SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

3.3 Property, Plant and Equipment-Owned 

Operating fixed assets except freehold land and capital work in progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, if any. Land and capital work in progress are stated at cost. Cost in relation to self manufactured assets includes 
direct cost of materials, labour and applicable manufacturing overheads. Cost of tangible fixed assets consists of historical cost, 
borrowing cost pertaining to the construction/erection period and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working 
condition. 

Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment except freehold land is charged by applying the reducing balance method in 
accordance with the rates specified in note no. 15.1 of these financial statements, whereby the cost of an asset is written off over 
its estimated useful life. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use while no 
depreciation is charged in the month in which the asset is disposed off. 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted if impact on depreciation is 
significant. 

Normal maintenance and repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and 
replacements are capitalized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Disposal of an asset is recognized when significant risks and rewards, incidental to the ownership of the assets have been 
transferred to the buyer. Gain or Loss on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined by comparing the carrying 
amount of the assets with the realized sale proceeds and is recognized in the current year's statement of profit or Loss. 

3.4 Impairment of fixed assets 

The company assesses at each statements of financial position date whether there is any indication that a fixed asset may be 
impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess 
of their recoverable amount. Where carrying value exceeds recoverable amount, assets are written down to the recoverable 
amount. 

3.5 Intangible Assets 

The Intangible Assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and identified impairment loss, if any. The cost of intangible 

assets is amortized over a period of five (5) years using the straight line method. 

Amortization on additions to the intangible assets is charged from the month in which an asset is capitalized and / or is available for 
use, while no amortization is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off. The amortization expense is charged to the 
statement of profit or Loss. 

International Accounting Standard (IAS) 38 "Intangible Assets" requires review of amortization period and the amortization method 
at least at each financial year end. Accordingly the management assesses at each statement of financial position date the assets' 
residual values and useful lives in addition to considering any indication of impairment, and adjustments are made if impact on 
amortization is significant. 

3.6 Loan, advances and prepayments 

These are recognized at cost, which is fair value of the consideration given. However, an assessment is made at each statement of 
financial position date to determine whether there is an indication that assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the 
estimated recoverable amount of that asset is determined and any impairment loss is recognized for the difference between the 
recoverable amount. 
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SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

3.7 Leases 

Form July 01, 2019, The Company as a lessee, at inception of a contract, assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, based 
on whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. 

leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use 
by the Company. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. 

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising of the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability, any lease payments 

made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs and restoration costs. The 
right-of-use asset is depreciated in line with normal depreciation policy adopted for assets owned by the Company. The security 
deposits are made part of the cost of right of use assets and treated as residual value of the asset. The right-of-use asset is reduced 
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. 

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the lease payments comprising of fixed payments (including in-substance fixed 
payments), less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, amounts expected to 
be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain 
to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that 
option. 

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. It is remeasured when there 

is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease payments or an index or rate, change in the Company's 

estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of 

whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount 

of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the statement of profit or loss if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been 

reduced to zero. 

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee's 
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an 
asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions. 

The company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of properties that have a 
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The company recognises the lease payments associated with these 
leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

3.8 Taxation 

Current and Prior Year 
Provision for current year's taxation is determined in accordance with the prevailing law of taxation on income enacted by the 

statement of financial position date and is based on current rates of taxation being applied on the taxable income for the year, 

after taking into account, tax credits and rebates available, if any and taxes paid under the Final tax regime. The tax charge also 

includes adjustments, where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from assessments finalized during the year. 

Deferred 

Deferred tax is accounted for using the statement of financial position liability method in respect of temporary differences arising 
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis 
used in the computation of taxable income. Deferred tax is calculated by using the tax rates enacted at the statement of financial 
position date. 
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SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available and the credits 
can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be 
realized. 

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, except in case where the item to which the deferred tax asset 
or liability pertains, is recorded in comprehensive income or equity, the corresponding deferred tax charge is also recognized in 
other comprehensive income or equity. 

3.9 Trade debts and other receivables 

These are recognized and carried at the original invoice amounts, being the fair value, less an allowance for uncollectible amounts, 
if any. The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure the expected credit losses (ECL) which uses a lifetime 
expected loss allowance for trade debts. 

3.10 Store, spares and loose tools 

These are valued at weighted average cost except items in transit which are valued at cost comprising invoice value and other 
charges paid thereon. 

The company reviews the carrying amount of stores, spares and loose tools on a regular basis and provision is made for 
obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical form. Impairment, if any, is also made for slow moving items 
identified as surplus to the requirements or future usability of the company. 

3.11 Stock-in-trade 

Stock in trade is valued at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value. The average cost in relation to work in 
process and finished goods represents direct costs of raw materials, labour and appropriate portion of overheads. Net realizable 
value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make 
the sale. 

The company reviews the carrying amount of stock in trade on a regular quarterly basis and as appropriate, inventory is written 
down to its net realizable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in its usage pattern and physical form 
of related stock in trade. The provision of slow moving is determined based on the management's assessment regarding their 
future usability. 

Cost of work in process and finished goods include direct material, labour and appropriate portion of manufacturing expenses. 

3.12 Foreign currency translation 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak rupees using the exchange rate prevailing at the dates of transactions. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pak rupees at the rates of exchange 
approximating those prevalent at the statement of financial position date. All exchange differences are charged to statement of 
profit or loss. 

3.13 Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognized when or as performance obligations are satisfied by transferring control of a promised goods or service to a 
customer under contract. 

3.14 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are added to the cost of those assets, until such 
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to statements of profit or 
loss in the period in which they are incurred. 
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3.15 Segment reporting 

Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief Operating Decision 
Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its 
internal reporting structure, a reportable segment is identified where it becomes a distinguishable component that is engaged in 
providing an individual product or service or a group of related products or services within a particular economic environment and 
that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other segments. Expenses which cannot be directly allocated 
activity-wise, are apportioned on appropriate basis as required by Chief Operating Decision Maker. 

3.16 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash 
and cash equivalent consists of cash in hand, balances with banks and short term borrowings facilities. 

3.17 Trade and accrued liabilities 

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the 
future for the goods and services received, whether billed or not to the Company. 

3.18 Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
of the amount can be made. 

Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no 
longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provisions 
are reversed. 

3.19 Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All the financial assets are derecognized at the time when the Company losses control 
of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. All financial liabilities are derecognized at the time when they are 
extinguished that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expires. Any gains or losses on de- 
recognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to the statement of profit or loss. 

3.19.1 Financial assets 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 
a) Amortized cost where the effective interest rate method will apply; 
b) Fair value through statement of profit or loss; 
c) Fair value through statement of comprehensive income. 

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash 
flows. 

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement of profit or loss or statement of 
comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those 
assets changes. 

Recognition and derecognition 

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Company commits to purchase 

or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or 

have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. 
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Measurement 

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition of the financial asset. In the case of a financial asset at fair value through statement of profit or loss (FVTPL), the 
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in the statement of profit or loss. 
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely 
payment of principal and interest. 

Debt instruments 

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash 
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments: 

(i) Amortized cost 

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and 
interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the 
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly in statement of profit or loss and 
presented in other operating income/(expenses), together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented 
as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss. 

(ii) Fair value through statement of comprehensive income (FVTCI) 

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows 

represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through 

statement of comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign 

exchange gains and losses which are recognized in statement of profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the 

cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in statement of comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to statement 

of profit or loss and recognized in other income/expenses. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income 

using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other income/expenses and 

impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss. 

(ill) Fair value through statement of profit or loss (FVTPL) 

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is 
subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and presented In operating gains/(losses) in the 
period in which it arises. 

De-recognition of financial assets 
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and 
the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 

Impairment of financial assets 
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the Expected Credit Losses (ECL) associated with its debt instruments carried at 
amortized cost and FVTCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk. 
Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model: 
-Trade debts 
- Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 
- Cash and bank balances 
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For trade debts, the Company applies the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial 
recognition of the receivables. The Company recognizes in statement of profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss, the amount of 
expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date. 

Write-off 

The Company write off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded 
that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. 

3.19.2 Financial Liabilities 

Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement 

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories: 
• At fair value through statement of profit or loss; and 
• Other financial liabilities 

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognized 
initially at fair value and, in the case of other financial liabilities, also include directly attributable transaction costs. The subsequent 
measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows: 

(i) Fair value through statement of profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for-trading and financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value through statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any 
financial liability upon recognition as being at fair value through statement of profit or loss. 

(ii) Amortized cost 

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the 
effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss, when the liabilities are 
derecognized as well as through effective interest rate amortization process. 

De-recognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing 

financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender with substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 

are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the 

recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

3.19.3 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if the 
Company has legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and intend either to settle on a net basis or to realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

3.20 Research and Development 

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new technical knowledge and understanding, is 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss as an expense as incurred. 
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Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design for the production of new or 
substantially improved products and processes, is capitalized if the product or process is technically and commercially feasible and 
the company has sufficient resources to complete development. The expenditure capitalized includes the cost of materials, direct 
labour, an appropriate proportion of overheads and other directly attributable expenditure. Other development expenditure is 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss as an expense as incurred. 

Expenditure on development activities, capitalized during the year, are classified under "Intangible Assets". 

3.21 Earning Per Share 

The Company presents Earning Per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares, EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to 
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. 

3.22 Dividends 

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved. 

3.23 Warranty Expenses 

Warranty expenses are recorded as and when valid claims are received from customers. 

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards. These standards require the use of 
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the 
Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the financial statements are as follows: 

Notes 
a) Liability in respect of staff retirement benefits. 3.1 
b) Useful life of depreciable Property, Plant and Equipment and amortizable Intangible assets. 3.3 & 3.5 
c) Taxation 3.8 
d) Stock in trade 3.11 
e) Contingencies and Commitments 14 

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors including expectation of 
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

5 SHARE CAPITAL 

5.1 AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL 

June 30, 
2020 

Number 

June 30, 
2019 

Number Note 

June 30, 
2020 

June 30, 
2019 

Rupees Rupees 

50,000,000 50,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each 500,000,000 500,000,000 

5.2 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL 

21,363,000 

14,403,842 

7,163,000 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each 
fully paid in cash 

14,403,842 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each 
allotted as bonus shares 

5.2.1 213,630,000 

5.2.2 144,038,420 

71,630,000 

144,038,420 

35,766,842 21,566,842 357,668,420 215,668,420 
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5.2.1 During the year, the Company issued 14,200,000 right shares at Rs. 50 per share at a premium of Rs. 40 per share amounting to 
total Rs. 710,00 million.These funds will be utilized to complete the project in time by procurement of plant & machinery, 
repayment of some portion of loan and to finance the working capital partially of four wheeler project. 

5.2.2 No bonus shares issued by the company during the year. 
June 30, 

2020 
June 30, 

2019 
Rupees Rupees 

5.3 CAPITAL RESERVE 

Premium on issuance of Right Shares 5.3.1 568,000,000 
Less: Expenses of Right Share Issuance (10,593,808) 

557,406,192 

5.3.1 This amount represents the amount of premium received on the Right shares issued during the year. 

6 LONG TERM FINANCING 

DIMINISHING MUSHARAKAH - Islamic banking 
MCB Islamic Bank Limited. 
Meezan Bank Limited 
Habib Bank Limited 

6.1 64,109,989 31,700,000 
6.2 212,477,505 192,371,555 
6.3 39,458,309 

316,045,803 224,071,555 

Less: Amount due within twelve months, shown under current 13 
portion of long term liabilities 66,637,943 22,401,560 

249,407,861 201,669,995 

NOTE 
FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS NAME 
/FACILITY TYPE 

FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED JUNE 30, 

TOTAL 

FACILITY 

UTILIZED 

FACILITY 

UN-UTILIZED 

FACILITY 

PURPOSE OF 

FACILITY 
RATE OF PROFIT 

NUMBER OF 

INSTALLMENT 

REPAYMENT 
COMMENCE 
MENT DATE 

DATE OF 

MATURITY 

TENURE 
SECURITY 

IN MILLION 

6.1 

MCB Islamic Bank 
Limited - 

Diminishing 
Musharakah 
"For 2019, Rs. 

35.71 M and for 
2020 Rs. 275.00 M 
is sublimit of note 

10.2.7" 

2020 

30.00 30.00 
For the 
acquisition of 
four wheeler 
Plant & 
Machinery. 

KIBOR PLUS 
1.35% with floor 
of 12.00% and 
Cap of 20.00% 

Quarterly 
Installments 

April 
2020 

January 
2025 

Six years 
including 
One Year 

grace 
period 

-Pari passu charge over fixed 
assets of Rs. 90.00 Million. 
-Personal guarantees of some of 
the directors. 

1.70 1.70 
For the 
acquisition of 
four wheeler 
Plant & 
Machinery. 

KIBOR PLUS 
1.35% with floor 
of 12.00% and 
Cap of 20.00% 

Quarterly 
Installments 

Three Months 
after the date 

of trial 
production 

October 
2024 

Six years 
including 
One Year 

grace 
period 

35.71 33.99 1.72 
For the 

acquisition of 
four wheeler 

Plant & 
Machinery. 

KIBOR PLUS 
1.75% with floor 
of 12.00% and 
Cap of 20.00% 

Quarterly 
Installments 

Three Months 
after the date 

of trial 
production 

September 
2025 

Six years 
including 
One Year 

grace 
period 2020 - Total 67.41 65.69 1.72 

2019 275.00 33.74 241.26 
For the 
acquisition of 
four wheeler 
Plant & 
Machinery. 

KIBOR PLUS 
1.35% with floor 
of 7.00% and Cap 
of 18.00% 

Quarterly 
Installments 

December 
2019 

August 
2025 

Six years 
including 
One Year 

grace 
period 

-Pari passu charge over fixed 
assets of Rs. 367.00 Million. 

6.1.1 During the year, MCB Islamic Bank Limited has reduced the Diminishing Musharakah facility of the Company from Rs. 275.00 Million to 67.41 Million. 
KIBOR PLUS Six years 

including 

6.2 
Meezan Bank 

Limited - 

2020 370.00 212.48 157.52 
For the 
acquisition of 
four wheeler 
Plant & 

Machinery. 

1.75% with floor 

of 8.00% and Cap 
Quarterly 

Installments 
August 

2020 
May 
2025 

One Year 
and 7 

months 
grace -Pari passu charge over fixed 

assets of Rs. 493.33 million. 
Diminishing of 22.00% period -Personal guarantees of some of 
Musharakah 

2019 370.00 192.37 177.63 

KIBOR PLUS 
1.75% with floor Quarterly December May 

Six years 
including 
One Year 

grace 
period 

the directors. 

of 7.00% and Cap 
of 15.00% 

Installments 2019 2025 

The State Bank of Pakistan announced the loan deferment policy in March - 2020, accordingly, the Company applied to Meezan Bank Limited to avail the benefit of the policy in form of deferment of 
principal amount of Diminishing Musharakah. Subsequent to the statement of financial position date, the bank has approved one year grace period by deferring the repayment of principle amount of 

6.2.1 Diminishing Musharakah. After the effect of deferment, the first installment of Diminishing Musharakah will be due as on August - 2021 and last date of maturity will be May-2026. The Company will not 
pay any amount from the current portion of Diminishing Musharakah during the financial year ended June 30, 2021. However, The Company has not revised its current portion of long term liabilities in 
these financial statements to comply with the International Financial Reporting Standards. 
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FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS NAME / FACILITY TYPE  

FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED JUNE 30, 

UN-UTIUZED PURPOSE OF 
RATE OF PROFIT 

NUMBER OF 

INSTALLMENT 

REPAYMENT 
COMMENCE 
MENT DATE MATURITY 

SECURITY 
IN MILLION -Pan passu charge over fi 

assets of Rs. 214.00 million. 
-Pari passu charge over current 
assets of Rs. 160.00 million. 
-Personal guarantees of som 
the directors.  

Habib Bank Limited - Diminishing Musharakah 
(Sub-Limit of Note No.10.4) 

For 
payment of 
wages 
salaries for the 
month April- 
2020 to June- 

2020 

Fixed at the rate 

6.3.1 The Company has availed the refinance facility for the payment of wages & salaries of company's employees for the months April-June 2020 during the year and for the months July-September 
2020 subsequent to the date of these financial statements. 

Note 
LEASE LIABILITIES 

June 30, 
2020 

June 30, 
2019 

Rupees Rupees 

Present value of minimum lease payments 
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 13 

72,800,000 
65,000,000 

7,800,000 

The amount of future payments and the periods in which these payments will become due are as under: 
Due not later than one year: 

Minimum lease payments 69,030,272 
Less: Future finance charges 4,030,272 
Present value 65,000,000 

Due later than one year and not later than five years: 

Minimum lease payments 8,229,064 
Less: Future finance charges 429,064 
Present value 7,800,000 

72,800,000 

7.1 The Company entered into Ijarah arrangement of Rs.93.75 million with ORIX Modaraba for lease of Car Welding Line. The lease 
term of these arrangements is three years (2019: Nil). The minimum lease payments have been discounted using the effective 
interest rates implicit in leases 11.98% per annum (June 30, 2019; Nil) to arrive at the present value. Rentals are payable in monthly 
installments. Repairs and maintenance costs are to be borne by the lessee. The liability is secured by deposit of Rs. 18.75 million 
(June 30, 2019: Nil) paripassu charge of Rs.100.00 M over fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of some directors of 
the Company. 

8 DEFERRED LIABILITIES 

Employee benefits obligation 
Deferred tax Liability 

8.1 
8.2 

202,107,551 

202,107,551 

159,833,484 
9,133,675 

168,967,159 

Deferred tax Asset 

8.1 Employee benefits obligation 

8.2 21,670,008 

8.1.1 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations 

Present value of defined benefit obligations 1st July 
Current Service Cost 
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 
Benefits due but not paid (payables) 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial (gain) / losses from changes in financial assumptions 
Experience Adjustments 

159,833,484 
19,790,933 
22,571,350 

(2,876,090) 
(2,637,193) 
5,425,067 

202,107,551 

139,269,648 
17,289,258 
12,365,723 

(219,902) 
(3,525,541) 
(8,795,143) 
3,449,441 

159,833,484 
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Note 

June 30, 
2020 

June 30, 
2019 

Rupees Rupees 

8.1.2 Movement in the net liability recognized 
in the statement of financial position 

Net liability as at 1st July 
Expense recognized in the statement of profit or loss 
Liability discharged during the year 
Benefit Payable transferred to Short Term Liability 
Re-measurement recognized in comprehensive income 
Net liability as at June 30 

8.1.3 

8.1.6 

159,833,484 
42,362,283 
(2,876,090) 

2,787,874 
202,107,551 

139,269,648 
29,654,981 
(3,525,541) 

(219,902) 
(5,345,702) 

159,833,484 

8.1.3 Expense recognized in the statement of profit or loss 

Current service cost 
Interest cost 

8.1.4 Distribution of expense recognized in the statement of profit or loss 

19,790,933 
22,571,350 
42,362,283 

17,289,258 
12,365,723 
29,654,981 

The expense is recognized in the following line items in the statement of profit or loss under the head salaries, wages and other 
benefits. 

Cost of sales 
Administrative expenses 
Distribution cost 

8.1.5 Year end sensitivity analysis(± 100 Bps) on Defined Benefit Obligation 

Discount Rate + 100 bps 
Discount Rate -100 bps 
Salary Increase + 100 Bps 
Salary Increase -100 Bps 

32,755,921 
8,597,178 
1,009,184 

42,362,283 

June 30, 2020 

186,361,504 
220,644,016 
220,972,618 
185,794,558 

22,915,205 
6,053,441 

686,335 
29,654,981 

June 30, 2019 

147,815,689 
173,874,629 
174,236,447 
147,298,078 

8.1.6 Re-measurement recognized in Comprehensive Income 

Actuarial (gain) / losses from changes in financial assumptions 
Experiences adjustments 
Total re-measurement recognized in Comprehensive Income 

(2,637,193) 
5,425,067 
2,787,874 

(8,795,143) 
3,449,441 

(5,345,702) 

8.1.7 Expected Benefit Payments for the Next 10 Years and Beyond 

Less than one 
Year 

From 1 to 2 
Year 

From 2 to 5 Year From 5 to 10 
Year 

More Than 10 
Years Total 

As At June 30, 2020 
Defined Benefit Obligations 37,993,905 26,445,521 

Rupees 

96,703,370 74,954,615 1,506,575,734 1,742,673,145 

8.1.8 The amount of expected expense of gratuity benefit in 2020-21 will be Rs. 38,812,792/- as per the actuary's report. 

8.1.9 The average duration of defined benefit obligation (unfunded) is 8 years (June 30, 2019, 8 Years). 

8.1.10 Principal actuarial assumptions 

The company has carried out actuarial valuation as at June 30, 2020 from professional actuary expert under the 'Projected Unit 
Credit Actuarial Cost Method' for calculating the accounting entries for these financial statements. The main assumptions used for 
actuarial valuation are as follows: 
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June 30, June 30, 
2020 2019 

Note Rupees Rupees 

Discount rate for year end Obligation 8.50 % p.a. 14.25 % p.a. 
Discount rate for interest cost in statement of profit or loss 14.25 % p.a. 9.00 % p.a. 
Expected rate of future salary increase for the year 2021 (2020) Nil % p.a. 5.00 % p.a. 
Expected rate of future salary increase from 2022 onward 7.50 % p.a. 13.25 % p.a. 
Next Salary is increased at July 01,2020 July 01, 2019 

Mortality rates SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005 
Setback 1 Year Setback 1 Year 

Withdrawal Rates Age-Based 
(per appendix) 

Age-Based (per 
appendix) 

Retirement assumption 60 Years 60 Years 

8.2 Deferred taxation 

Taxable temporary differences arising from; 

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 
Right of use asset 

Deductible temporary differences arising from; 

Minimum tax u/s 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 
Liabilities under lease that are deducted for tax purposes only when paid 

8.2.1 Movement of deferred tax is as follows: 

17,182,390 
21,750,000 

(39,737,408) 
(20,864,990) 

(21,670,008)" 

18,525,715 

(9,392,040) 

9,133,675 

Opening Balance - Deferred Tax Liability 
Less: Deferred tax income during the year 
Less: Transfer from deferred tax asset to taxation - net 
Closing balance - Deferred Tax Asset 

9 DEFERRED GRANT 

9,133,675 
(29,460,358) 

(1,343,325) 
(21,670,008) 

20,332,909 
(9,392,040) 
(1,807,194) 
9,133,675 

Opening Balance 
Add: Received during the Year 9.1 5,190,029 
Less: Amortized during the Year 32  (19,428) 
Closing Balance  5,170,602 

9.1 The amount represents the difference of loan proceed and fair value of the loan from Habib Bank Limited for payment of wages 
and salaries for the months of April to June-2020 under the discount profit scheme 3% fixed issued by the State bank of Pakistan. 

10 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

Creditors 334,232,870 
Advances from trade customers - Contract Liability 10.1 3,387,015 
Accrued & Other liabilities 52,213,974 
Murabaha Payable: (Islamic banking) 

Meezan Bank Limited 10.3 
Habib Bank Limited 10.4 
MCB Islamic Bank Limited 10.5 
United Bank Limited 10.6 
Allied Bank Limited 10.7 

Sales tax payable 1,570,438 
Income tax deducted at source 19,099,918 
Payable towards; 

Workers' Profit Participation Fund 10.8 2,233,024 
Workers' Welfare Fund 10.9  832,730 

413,569,969 

393,155,423 
14,826 

38,998,350 

45,884,998 
17,147,823 
2,041,907 

6,270,121 
4,151,262 

6,080,459 
2,235,910 

515,981,079 
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10.1 These represent advance received from customers in respect of sale of vehicles and parts. All the opening balance 
of advance has been recognized as revenue during the year. 

NOTE FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS NAME 
/ FACILITY TYPE 

FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED JUNE 30, 

TOTAL 
FACILITY 

UTILIZED 
FACILITY 

UN-UTILIZED 
FACILITY SECURITY 

10.2 Letter of Credit facilities 
IN MILLION 

10.2.1 Meezan Bank Limited 2020 500.00 40.25 459.75 Lien on import Documents and Personal 
guarantees of some of the directors. 2019 500.00 53.80 446.20 

10.2.2 Habib Bank Limited - Islamic 
Banking 

2020 160.00 75.31 84.69 Lien on import Documents and Personal 
guarantees of some of the directors. 2019 160.00 54.77 105.23 

10.2.3 United Bank Limited - Ameen Islamic 
Banking 

2020 200.00 28.54 171.46 Lien on import Documents and Personal 
guarantees of some of the directors. 2019 200.00 - 200.00 

10.2.4 Allied Bank Limited 2020 225.00 - 225.00 Lien on import Documents and Personal 
guarantees of some of the directors. 2019 225.00 - 225.00 

10.2.5 MCB Islamic Bank Limited 2020 - - 0.0 Lien on import Documents and Personal 
guarantees of some of the directors. 2019 100.00 7.36 92.64 

Letter of Credit facilities - for Capital Expenditure 
10.2.6 Meezan Bank Limited "Sublimit 

of note no. 6.2" 
2020 5.20 - 5.20 Lien on import Documents and Personal 

guarantees of some of the directors. 2019 53.20 - 53.20 

10.2.7 MCB Islamic Bank Limited 2020 35.71 35.71 - Lien on import Documents and Personal 
guarantees of some of the directors. 2019 275.00 35.71 239.29 

NOTE 
FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS 
NAME / FACILITY 
TYPE 

FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED JUNE 30, 

TOTAL 

FACILITY 

UTILIZED 

FACILITY 

UN-UTILIZED 

FACILITY 

MAXIMUM 

PERIOD 

RATE OF 

PROFIT 
SECURITY 

IN MILLION 

10.3 

Meezan Bank 
Limited - 

Murabaha 
Arrangement 

2020 200.00 " 200.00 180 Days KIBOR PLUS 
1.25% 

-Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 
268.00 million keeping 25% margin. 
-Paripassu charge over current assets of Rs. 
200.00 million. 
-Personal guarantees of some of the 
directors. 

2019 200.00 45.89 154.11 180 Days KIBOR PLUS 
1.25% 

10.4 

Habib Bank Limited 

- Islamic Banking - 

Murabaha 

Arrangement 

2020 160.00 - 160.00 120 Days KIBOR PLUS 
1.10% 

-Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 
214.00 million. 
-Pari passu charge over current assets of Rs. 
160.00 million. 
-Personal guarantees of some of the 
directors. 

2019 160.00 17.15 142.85 120 Days KIBOR PLUS 
1.10% 

10.5 

MCB Islamic Bank 
Limited - 

Murabaha 
Arrangement 

"sublimit of Note 
no. 6.1 (June 30, 

2019)" 

2020 " " " " - 

2019 275.00 33.74 241.26 180 Days KIBOR PLUS 
1.15% 

-Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 
367.00 million with 25% margin. 
-Paripassu charge over current assets of Rs. 
275.00 million. 
-Personal guarantees of some of the 
directors. 

10.6 

United Bank Limited - 
Ameen Islamic 

Banking Murabaha 
Arrangement 

(sublimit of Note no. 
10.2.3) 

2020 200.00 " 200.00 180 Days KIBOR PLUS 
1.10% 

-Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 
267.00 million with 25% margin. 
-Paripassu charge over current assets of Rs. 
200.00 million. 
-Personal guarantees of some of the 
directors. 

2019 200.00 " 200.00 180 Days KIBOR PLUS 
1.10% 

10.7 

Allied Bank Limited 
- Murabaha 

Arrangement 
(sublimit of Note 

no. 10.2.4) 

2020 135.00 " 135.00 90 Days KIBOR PLUS 
1.10% 

-Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 
185.00 million. 
-Paripassu charge over current assets of Rs. 
110.00 million. 
-Personal guarantees of some of the 
directors. 

2019 135.00 " 135.00 90 Days KIBOR PLUS 
1.10% 
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10.8 

10.9 

11 

Workers' Profit Participation Fund 

Balance at beginning of the year 
Charged during the year 

Payment made during the year 

Workers' Welfare Fund 
Balance at beginning of the year 
Charged during the year 
Adjustment for prior years 
Charged to Statement of Profit or Loss 

Payment made during the year 

PROFIT ACCRUED ON LOANS AND OTHER PAYABLES 

Note 

30 

June 30, 
2020 

June 30, 
2019 

Rupees Rupees 

30 

12 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED 

Running Musharakah arrangements - Islamic Banking 
Habib Bank Limited 
United Bank Limited 
Meezan Bank Limited 
Allied Bank Limited 

Istisna arrangements - Islamic Banking 
Meezan Bank Limited 

12.1 
12.2 
12.3 
12.4 

12.5 

6,080,459 24,793,863 
2,233,024 6,080,459 
8,313,483 30,874,322 

(6,080,459) (24,793,863) 
2,233,024 6,080,459 

2,235,910 4,995,387 
832,730 
119,530 

2,235,910 
(42,170) 

952,260 2,193,740 
3,188,170 

(2,355,440) 
7,189,127 

(4,953,217) 
832,730 2,235,910 

Lease Liabilities - secured 314,941 - 
Short term borrowing - secured 1,796,739 1,386,227 
Long term borrowing - secured 37,955,816 14,172,320 
Profit on Murabaha Payable 5,865 136,661 

40,073,361 15,695,208 

NOTE 
FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS NAME / 
FACILITY TYPE 

FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED JUNE 30, 

SUB-LIMIT OF 
NOTE NO. 

TOTAL 
FACILITY 

UTILIZED 
FACILITY 

UN-UTILIZED 
FACILITY 

RATE OF 
PROFIT 

SECURITY 
IN MILLION 

12.1 

Habib Bank Limited - 
Islamic Banking - Running 

Mushara kah 
Arrangements 

2020 10.4 160.00 - 160.00 
KIBOR 
PLUS 
1.10% 

-Pari passu charge over fixed assets of 
Rs. 214.00 million. 
-Paripassu charge over current assets 
of Rs. 160.00 million. 
-Personal guarantees of some of the 
directors. 

2019 10.4 160.00 17.15 142.85 
KIBOR 
PLUS 
1.10% 

12.2 

United Bank Limited - 
Ameen Islamic Banking - 

Running Musharakah 
Arrangements 

2020 10.2.3 200.00 " 200.00 
KIBOR 
PLUS 
1.10% 

-Pari passu charge over fixed assets of 
Rs. 267.00 million with 25% margin. 
-Paripassu charge over current assets 
of Rs. 200.00 million. 
-Personal guarantees of some of the 
directors. 

2019 10.2.3 200.00 " 200.00 
KIBOR 
PLUS 
1.10% 

12.3 

Meezan Bank Limited - 

Running Musharakah 

Arrangements 

2020 10.3 60.00 " 60.00 
KIBOR 
PLUS 
1.25% 

-Pari passu charge over fixed assets of 
Rs. 268.00 million keeping 25% margin. 
-Paripassu charge over current assets 
of Rs. 200.00 million. 
-Personal guarantees of some of the 
directors. 

2019 10.3 60.00 60.00 
KIBOR 
PLUS 
1.25% 

12.4 

Allied Bank Limited - 
Business Running 

Mushara kah 
Arrangements 

2020 10.7 45.00 " 45.00 
KIBOR 
PLUS 
1.10% 

-Pari passu charge over fixed assets of 
Rs. 185.00 million. 
-Paripassu charge over current assets 
of Rs. 110.00 million. 
-Personal guarantees of some of the 
directors. 

2019 10.7 45.00 " 45.00 
KIBOR 
PLUS 
1.10% 

12.5 Meezan Bank Limited - 
Istisna Arrangement 

2020 10.3 40.00 40.00 
KIBOR 
PLUS 
1.25% 

-Paripassu charge over fixed assets of 
Rs. 268.00 million keeping 25% margin. 
-Paripassu charge over current assets 
of Rs. 200.00 million. 
-Personal guarantees of some of the 
directors. 

2019 10.3 40.00 " 40.00 
KIBOR 
PLUS 
1.25% 
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13 CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM LIABILITIES 

Diminishing Musharakah - Islamic banking 
Lease Liability - Islamic banking 

Note 

June 30, 
2020 

June 30, 
2019 

Rupees Rupees 

66,637,943 
65,000,000 

131,637,943 

22,401,560 

22,401,560 

14 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

14.1 Contingencies 

14.1.1 The Director General (HCl)/Adjudicating Officer of Punjab Employees Social Security Institution (PESSI) has passed an order against 
the company and sustained the demand created by Deputy Director (Admin) of Rs. 6,547,688/- as on June 12, 2019. The company 
filed an appeal against the said order before The Honorable Labour Court, Lahore and has been granted a stay order. The appeal is 
still pending. In the opinion of the legal advisor, favorable outcome of the appeal is expected, hence no provision is made in these 
financial statements. 

14.1.2 The Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore has decided the case in favor of PEESI against the appeal filed by the company with 

respect to the notification issued by the Government of Punjab (Labour & Human Resource Department) for enhancing the monthly 

wage ceiling from Rs. 18,000/- to 22,000/-. The estimated effect of this notification on financial statements of the company till 

reporting date is Rs. 1,069,096/-. The company challenged the order by filing an Intra Court Appeal (ICA) before the Honorable 

Lahore High Court, Lahore as on July 04, 2019, and has been granted a stay order. The appeal is still pending. In the opinion of the 

legal advisor, favorable outcome of the appeal is expected, hence no provision is made in these financial statements. 

14.1.3 The Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) retrospectively restored sales tax on renting of immovable property services vide Sindh Sales Tax on 

Services (Amendment) Act, 2018, therefore Landlord of Company's Karachi office has claimed sales tax on rent services of Rs. 

257,064/- for the tax year 2016, 2017 and 2018. The Company has challenged the law by filing a writ petition in Honorable Sindh 

High Court, Karachi and has been granted a stay order as on December 31, 2018. In the opinion of the lawyer, the outcome of the 

case is expected in favour of the company, hence no provision is made in these financial statements. 

14.1.4 The Employees' Old-Age Benefits Institution issued a circular no. 01/2015-16 dated: March 01, 2016 for enhancing the monthly 

wage ceiling from Rs. 8,000/- to Rs. 13,000/- in different years retrospectively. Therefore, The Company has filed a writ petition 

with The Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore (LHC) and has been granted a stay order as on April 27, 2016. The petition is still 

pending in LHC. The estimated effect of this notification on financial statements of the company till reporting date is Rs. 

13,223,209/-. In the opinion of legal advisor, favorable outcome of the appeal is expected, hence no provision is made in these 

financial statements. 
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14.1.5 ACIR initiated proceedings under section 122 (5A) of Income Tax Ordinance 2001 for tax year 2017 and created a tax demand of Rs. 
11,385,589/- as on September 26, 2018. The company filed an appeal against this order with CIR (Appeals) and also file a writ 
petition in Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore for obtaining a stay order against recovery of said amount. The Honourable 
Lahore high court, Lahore has granted a stay order against recovery of tax demand till the decision of CIR (Appeals). The 
proceedings of CIR (Appeals) are still pending. In the opinion of tax consultant, favorable outcome of the appeals is expected, hence 
no provision is made in these financial statements. 

14.1.6 ACIR initiated proceedings under section 124/129/221 of Income Tax Ordinance 2001 for tax year 2008 and rejected the refund of 
Rs. 1,432,320/-. The company filed an appeal against this order with CIR (Appeals) as on June 30, 2016, proceeding is still pending. 
In the opinion of tax consultant, favorable outcome is expected, hence no provision is made in these financial statements. 

14.1.7 ACIR initiated proceedings under section 3(1A) of Sales Tax act 1990 for tax period July-Sep 2015 and created sales tax demand of 
Rs. 9,392,789/- as on June 06, 2016 . The company filed an appeal against this order with CIR (A) and CIR (A) vacated the order of 
ACIR. However ACIR filed an appeal with ATIR, appeal is still pending. In the opinion of tax consultant, favorable outcome is 
expected, hence no provision is made in these financial statements. 

14.1.8 The appeal filed by the company with ATIR against the order of CIR (Appeals) for tax demand of Rs. 545,930/- for tax year 2003 as 

on November 12, 2009 under section 122 (5A), preceding is still pending. In the opinion of the tax consultant, favorable outcome of 

the appeal is expected, hence no provision is made in these financial statements. 

14.1.9 DCIR initiated proceedings under section 122 (5A) for tax year 2009 and created a tax demand of Rs. 5,439,326/- as on March 31, 

2015. The company filed an appeal against this order with CIR (Appeals) and got relief up to Rs.5,318,163/-. For remaining tax 

demand of Rs. 121,899/-, company filed an appeal with ATIR. Further, the DCIR has also filed an appeal with ATIR against the Relief of 

Rs. 5,318,163/- given by the CIR (A). In the opinion of tax consultant, favorable outcomes of the appeals are expected, hence no 

provision is made in these financial statements. 

14.1.10 DCIR initiated proceedings under section 122 (1)/122 (5A) for tax year 2013 and created a tax demand of Rs. 6,845,112/- as on 

January 31, 2013. The company filed appeals against the order with CIR (Appeals) and got relief of Rs. 4,365,419/-. For remaining tax 

demand of Rs.2,479,693/-, the company has filed an appeal with ATIR. The appeal is still pending. Further in 2017, the DCIR has 

also filed an appeal with the ATIR against the relief of Rs. 4,365,419/- given by CIR (A) for tax year 2013, which is also pending. In the 

opinion of tax consultant, favorable outcomes of the appeals are expected, hence no provision is made in these financial 

statements. 

14.1.11 DCIR passed an order under section 11 (2) of Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the tax period from July-2011 to June-2012 and created a 

demand of Rs. 192,568,536/- as on May 30, 2018. The company filed an appeal against this order with CIR (Appeals). The CIR 

(Appeals) has remand back the case to DCIR with upheld amount of Rs.2,223,033/-. The Company intends to file an appeal with ATIR 

against the decision of CIR (Appeals) for the upheld amount and decision of remand back. In the opinion of the tax consultant, 

favorable outcome of the appeal is expected, hence no provision is made in these financial statements. 

14.1.12 DCIR passed an order under section 11 (2) of Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the tax period from July-2013 to June-2014 and created a 

demand of Rs. 7,418,949/- as on September 28, 2017. The company filed an appeal against this order with CIR (Appeals) and has 

been granted a stay order. The proceedings are still pending and in the opinion of the tax consultant, favorable outcome of the 

appeal is expected, hence no provision is made in these financial statements. 
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14.1.13 Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) initiated proceedings under section 122(5A) of Income Tax Ordinance 2001 for tax 

year 2018 and created a tax demand of Rs. 8,848,110/- as on February 06, 2020. The Company filed an appeal before the 

Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeal CIR(A) against this order of ACIR and has been granted a stay order, proceedings are still 

pending. In the opinion of tax consultant, favorable outcome of the appeal is expected, hence no provision is made in these 

financial statements. 

14.1.14 DCIR initiated proceedings under section 161/205 of Income Tax Ordinance 2001 for tax year 2017 and created a tax demand of Rs. 
33,952,716/- as on March 30, 2019- The Company filed an appeal against this order with CIR (A) and CIR (A) deleted the order of 
DCIR as on June 25, 2019. Flowever DCIR filed an appeal with ATIR against the order of CIR (A) as on August 27, 2019, proceedings 
are still pending. In the opinion of tax consultant, favorable outcome of the appeal is expected, hence no provision is made in these 
financial statements. 

14.1.15 The Company has filed Writ Petition in Lahore High Court, Lahore (LHC) against the illegal selection by the Commissioner Inland 
Revenue for the audit of sales tax affairs for tax year 2017 under section 25 of Sales Tax Act 1990. Which was rejected by the 
honourable Court. The Company filed an Intera Court Appeal (ICA) before honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore and honourable 
Court has granted an interim relief to the Company and restrained the Commissioner Inland Revenue to pass a final order till the 
decision of appeal as on January 21, 2020. The case is still pending. In the opinion of the lawyer, outcome of this case will be in 
favour of the company. 

14.1.16 For the financial year ended June 30, 2018, the management did not make an announcement of dividend due to cash requirement 
for the setting up a project of manufacturing/assembly of passenger and off-road vehicles, which attracted the provisions of 
Section 5 (A) of Income Tax Ordinance 2001. The company has challenged the legality and constitutionality of section 5 (A) of 
Income Tax Ordinance 2001 by filing a Constitutional petition in the Lahore High Court, Lahore as on July 03, 2018, the said writ 
petition is pending before the Honourable Court. In the opinion of the lawyer, favorable outcome of the appeal is expected, hence 
provision of Rs.19.10 Million is not made in these financial statements. 

14.1.17 A group of persons in rickshaw market Karachi was deposited a sum of Rs. 10.93 Million unilaterally in the Company's bank account 
for the purchase of auto rickshaw without any authorization from the Company. The company filed a suit in Honorable Sindh High 
Court, Karachi (SHC) against these persons as on September 24, 2019. Instead of appearing in the Honorable Sindh High Court, 
Karachi, they filed nine civil suits against the Company for the declaration, cancellation, recovery and damages amounting to Rs. 
109.43 Million. The cases are still pending. In the opinion of the lawyer, these claims are frivolous and the outcome of these cases 
will be in favour of the company. Therefore, the Company has not made any provision for this amount in these financial 
statements. 

14.2 Commitments 

14.2.1 Commitments in respect of outstanding letters of credit for raw material amount to Rs. 102.73 Million (June 30, 2019; Rs. 134.26 
Million). 

14.2.2 Commitments in respect of capital expenditures amount to Rs. 117.17 Million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 146.52 Million). 

14.2.3 Commitments for future minimum payments in respect of Ijarah arrangements are as follows: 
June 30, June 30, 

2020 2019 
Rupees Rupees 

Not later than one year 69,030,272 - 
Later than one year but not later than five years 8,229,064 - 

Later than five years - - 
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Operating fixed assets - Tangible 
Capital work in progress 

15.1 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS - Tangible 

June 30, June 30, 
2020 2019 

Note Rupees Rupees 

15.1 335,796,920 348,588,354 
15.3 982,535,886 649,491,034 

1,318,332,806 998,079,388 

2020 Rupees 
Cost Depreciation W.D.V. 

Particulars As at 
01-07-2019 

Additions/ 
(Deletions) Transfer As at 

30-06-2020 
Rate 

% 
As at 

01-07-2019 
For the 

Year Adjustment As at 
30-06-2020 

as at 
30-06-2020 

Freehold land 195,551,940 195,551,940 195,551,940 
Building and Civil Works 
on freehold land 88,273,401 88,273,401 5 to 10 59,126,314 2,840,253 61,966,567 26,306,834 
Building and Civil Works 
on leasehold land 2,509,800 2,509,800 10 786,886 172,291 959,177 1,550,623 
Plant and Machinery 218,870,317 4,183,340 223,053,657 10 144,536,406 7,617,725 152,154,131 70,899,526 
Electric Fittings 9,189,359 9,189,359 10 6,209,815 297,954 6,507,769 2,681,590 
Furniture and Fittings 2,996,463 620,804 3,617,267 10 1,688,418 139,011 1,827,429 1,789,838 
Office Equipment 7,147,155 618,722 7,765,877 10 3,039,113 443,628 3,482,741 4,283,136 
Electric Installations 5,231,950 916,300 6,148,250 10 2,101,599 321,362 2,422,961 3,725,289 
Vehicles 76,059,961 3,183,000 

(7,742,500) 
71,500,461 20 39,753,440 7,395,926 

(4,657,050) 
42,492,317 29,008,144 

Total 2020 605,830,345 9,522,166 
(7,742,500) 

607,610,011 257,241,991 19,228,150 
(4,657,050) 

271,813,091 335,796,920 

2019 Rupees 
Cost Depreciation W.D.V. 

Particulars As at 
01-07-2018 

Additions/ 
(Deletions) Transfer As at 

30-06-2019 
Rate 

% 
As at 

01-07-2018 
For the 

Year Adjustment As at 
30-06-2019 

as at 
30-06-2019 

Freehold land 195,551,940 195,551,940 195,551,940 
Building and Civil Works 
on freehold land 88,273,401 88,273,401 5 to 10 55,974,833 3,151,481 59,126,314 29,147,087 
Building and Civil Works 
on leasehold land 2,509,800 2,509,800 10 595,451 191,435 786,886 1,722,914 
Plant and Machinery 216,194,790 2,675,527 218,870,317 10 136,464,681 8,071,725 144,536,406 74,333,911 
Electric Fittings 9,189,359 9,189,359 10 5,878,755 331,060 6,209,815 2,979,544 
Furniture and Fittings 2,311,633 684,830 2,996,463 10 1,552,061 136,357 1,688,418 1,308,045 
Office Equipment 6,141,575 1,005,580 7,147,155 10 2,621,572 417,541 3,039,113 4,108,042 
Electric Installations 3,300,450 1,931,500 5,231,950 10 1,867,026 234,573 2,101,599 3,130,351 
Vehicles 63,904,961 16,336,000 

(4,181,000) 
76,059,961 20 35,579,155 7,382,160 

(3,207,875) 
39,753,440 36,306,521 

Total 2019 587,377,908 22,633,437 
(4,181,000) 

605,830,345 240,533,534 19,916,331 
(3,207,875) 

257,241,991 348,588,354 

15.2 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows 

Cost of sales 
Distribution cost 
Administrative expenses 

June 30, 
2020 

June 30, 
2019 

Rupees Rupees 

27 10,996,596 11,867,169 
28 3,844,074 3,089,976 
29 4,387,480 4,959,186 

19,228,150 19,916,331 
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Note 

June 30, 
2020 

June 30, 
2019 

Rupees Rupees 

15.3 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS 

Tangible 
Plant and machinery 
Opening balance 
Additions made during the year 

Transferred to Plant & Machinery 

Civil works 
Opening balance 
Additions made during the year 

Transferred to operating fixed assets 

Intangible 
Opening balance 
Additions made during the year 

Transferred to Intangible Assets 

263,850,066 22,888,612 
15.4 288,506,873 240,961,454 

552,356,939 263,850,066 

552,356,939 263,850,066 

385,299,717 338,580,335 
44,537,979 46,719,382 

429,837,696 385,299,717 

429,837,696 385,299,717 

341,251 490,334 

341,251 490,334 
- 149,083 

341,251 341,251 

982,535,886 649,491,034 

15.4 This includes right of use asset of Rs. 93.75 Million (June 30, 2019: nil). 

15.5 Particulars of Company's Immovable Fixed Assets: 

SR No. PARTICULARS LOCATION NATURE AREA OF LAND 
(In Acres) 

l Manufacturing Facility of Three Wheeler, 
Appliances and Automotive Parts. 

18 K.M Raiwind Road, Lahore. OWNED 5.46 
2 Four Wheeler Manufacturing Facility - Under 

Construction. 
Mouza Bhai Kot, Near Tablighi Ijtama, 
Raiwind, Lahore. OWNED 36.92 

3 Warranty Center, Karachi. B-66, State Avenue S.l.T.E, Karachi. LEASED 0.36 

15.6 The detail of property, plant and equipment disposed off is as follows: 

Particulars Cost Net Book Value Sale Price Gain / (Loss) Mode of Disposal Particulars of Purchaser 

Rupees 

Honda Civic 2,637,000 1,282,637 2,780,000 1,497,364 Negotiation Mr. Shahbaz Ahmed Khan, H no. 937, Molana 
Shoukat Ali Road, Block -D, Lahore. 

Honda Civic 2,468,500 655,191 1,700,000 1,044,809 Negotiation Mrs. Shakeela Akhtar, H no. 105, Street No. 11, Block 
16, Sargodha. 

Honda Civic 2,637,000 1,147,622 2,540,000 1,392,378 Negotiation Mr. Rana Anwar Zia, House no. 117-B, Phase -1, Ali 
View Garden Badian Road, Lahore. 

June 30, 2020 7,742,500 3,085,450 7,020,000 3,934,551 

June 30, 2019 4,181,000 973,125 2,500,000 1,526,877 
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16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

(Rupees) 

Particulars 
Cost Amortization Book Value 

as at 
30-06-2020 

As at 
01-07-2019 

Additions/ 
(deletion) 

As at 
30-06-2020 

As at 
01-07-2019 

For the 
Year 

As at 
30-06-2020 

Intangible Assets 4,357,922 4,357,922 4,249,362 31,616 4,280,978 76,944 
Jun-20 4,357,922 - 4,357,922 4,249,362 31,616 4,280,978 76,944 
Jun-19 4,208,839 149,083 4,357,922 4,198,264 51,098 4,249,362 108,560 

16.1 Intangible assets include cost incurred on patents, copyrights, trade marks and designs. 
16.2 The amortization cost is included in cost of sales. 

June 30, 
2020 

June 30, 
2019 

Note Rupees Rupees 
LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES - SECURED 

Loans and advances - considered good, to; 

Executives 
Non-Executives 

8,528,925 
33,950,368 

7,853,925 
33,064,873 

42,479,293 40,918,798 

Less: Amount due within twelve months, shown under current 
portion of loans and advances 22 14,989,140 16,023,545 

27,490,153 24,895,253 

Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans and advances to executives and non-Executives: 

Opening balance as Disbursements / Repayments / Closing Balance as at 
at July 01,2019 Transfer Transfer June 30,2020 

Executives 
Non-Executives 
June 30,2020 
June 30,2019 

7,853,925 
33,064,873 

1,500,000 
18,304,282 

40,918,798 19,804,282 
30,163,920 27,822,462 

825,000 
17,418,787 
18,243,787 
17,067,584 

8,528,925 
33,950,368 
42,479,293 
40,918,798 

These loans and advances have been granted under staff loan and advances policy to facilitate the employees for purchase of 

house and meeting other household payments. These are secured against the gratuity payable to employees. These are interest 

free loans which are repayable within maximum fourteen years. The maximum amount of loan outstanding to executives at the end 

of any month during the year was Rs. 8,613,925 (2019: Rs. 8,448,925). Receivable from executives of the Company does not include 

any amount receivable from Directors or Chief Executive. The carrying values of these loans are neither past due nor impaired. The 

credit quality of these financial assets can be assessed with reference to no default in recent history. 

18 LONG TERM DEPOSITS 

Deposit with Pakistan Steel Mill 
Utilities and others 

400,000 
3,112,855 
3,512,855 

400,000 
2,919,855 
3,319,855 

18.1 Long term deposits are given in the normal course of business and do not carry any interest or mark-up. 
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20 STOCK-IN-TRADE 

Note 

June 30, 
2020 

June 30, 
2019 

Rupees Rupees 

19 STORES, SPARES AN D LOOSE TOOLS 

Stores 
Spares 
Loose tools 

4,826,567 
420,217 

35,148 
5,281,932 

2,614,622 
351,994 

25,913 
2,992,529 

Raw materials and components 
Work-in-process 
Finished goods 

Less: 
Provision for slow moving items 20.1 

416,574,470 
30,553,475 

222,905,224 

(9,922,842) 

660,110,327 

448,907,241 
28,239,219 

178,368,962 

(9,667,692) 

645,847,730 

20.1 Provision for slow moving items 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Charged during the year 
Balance at the closing of the year 

21 TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured 

21.1 Classification: 

Considered Good 
Considered Doubtful 

Less: Provision for expected credit losses 

21.2 Provision for Expected Credit losses (ECL) 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Charged during the year 

Reversal during the year 
Balance at the closing of the year 

21.2.1 Amount recovered during the year. 

22 LOANS & ADVANCES 

Advances - considered good 

- Current portion of loans and advances 
- To employees for incurring business expenses 
- To suppliers-unsecured 

27 

21.1 

21.2 

21.2.1 

17 

9,667,692 
255,150 

9,922,842 

122,597,252 

122,597,252 
9,641,805 

132,239,057 
(9,641,805) 

122,597,252 

9,641,805 

9,641,805 

9,641,805 

14,989,140 
76,097 

1,036,684 
16,101,921 

7,505,112 
2,162,580 
9,667,692 

115,605,575 

115,605,575 
9,641,805 

125,247,380 
(9,641,805) 

115,605,575 

9,647,305 

9,647,305 

(5,500) 
9,641,805 

16,023,545 
3,961 

192,499 
16,220,005 

22.1 These amount given in the normal course of business and do not carry any interest or mark-up. 
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23 

June 30, June 30, 
2020 2019 

Note Rupees Rupees 
TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM 
PREPAYMENTS 

Contract securities 400,000 400,000 
Prepaid expenses 1,399,528 1,132,262 
Letter of credit margin 19,877,112 19,935,002 
Letter of credit in process 44,571,498 27,143,291 

66,248,138 48,610,555 

23.1 These amount given in the normal course of business and do not carry any interest or mark-up. 

24 OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Advance income tax - net 
Advance Sales tax 
Others   

25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

118,345,962 
9,532,464 
2,050,373 

129,928,799 

107,271,671 
2,000,000 

109,271,671 

Cash in hand 
Balance with banks 

In current accounts - Conventional banking 
In current accounts - Islamic banking 
In saving accounts - Islamic banking 25.1 

298,459 

7,852,046 
44,796,992 

395,871,558 
448,819,055 

25.1 This carry profit at the rates ranging from 3.65% to 8.00% (June 30, 2019: From .10% to .20%) per annum. 

26 SALES-NET 

Gross sales 26.1 

Less: Sales tax 
Sales returns 
Commission 

175,176 

2,992,544 
2,774,642 

24,999 
5,967,361 

3,567,680,810 4,211,272,674 

499,435,176 
124,940,920 
51,550,212 

561,894,153 
364,310,305 

66,544,378 

675,926,308 992,748,836 

2,891,754,502 3,218,523,838 

26.1 This includes Rs. 30.24 million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 11.05 million) on account of export sales. 

Annual Report 2020|71 



SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 I ■ m III I m I * k I * ■# 1 * \J m 
June 30, June 30, 

2020 2019 
Note Rupees Rupees 

COST OF SALES 

Raw materials and components consumed 2,117,655,984 2,451,348,991 
Salaries, wages and other benefits 27.1 325,067,632 275,782,776 
Stores, spares and loose tools consumed 38,219,049 41,485,641 
Power and fuel charges 64,317,268 62,729,654 
Repair and maintenance 52,527,631 56,004,913 
Other expenses 12,339,607 10,714,001 
Provision for slow moving items 20.1 255,150 2,162,580 
Depreciation 15.2 10,996,596 11,867,169 
Amortization 16 31,616 51,098 

2,621,410,533 2,912,146,823 
Opening work-in-process 28,239,219 11,921,639 

2,649,649,752 2,924,068,462 
Closing work-in-process 30,553,475 28,239,219 
Cost of goods manufactured 2,619,096,277 2,895,829,243 
Opening finished goods 178,368,962 137,357,026 

2,797,465,239 3,033,186,269 
Cost of finished goods purchased during the year 24,180,346 32,984,200 

2,821,645,585 3,066,170,469 
Closing finished goods 222,905,224 178,368,962 

2,598,740,361 2,887,801,507 

27.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs.32,755,921 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 22,915,205) in respect of retirement benefits. 

28 DISTRIBUTION COST 

Salaries and other benefits 28.1 29,418,148 26,761,665 
Freight and octroi 41,283,980 49,042,133 
Traveling & conveyance 4,585,024 4,342,779 
Packing material consumed 3,577,974 3,259,403 
Advertisement and sale promotion 7,790,144 1,684,001 
Insurance 575,758 404,026 
Rent Expenses 28.2 4,032,591 3,626,289 
After sales service 1,166,618 950,299 
Printing & Stationery 103,978 304,532 
Depreciation 15.2 3,844,074 3,089,976 

96,378,289 93,465,103 

28.1 Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 1,009,184 (June 30,2019: Rs. 686,335) in respect of retirement benefits. 
28.2 This represents short term lease rentals. 
29 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Salaries and other benefits 29.1 
Electricity, gas and water charges 
Communication expenses 
Vehicle running expenses 
Legal and professional 
Traveling and conveyance 
Fee and subscription 
Insurance 
Rent, rates and taxes 29.2 
Printing and stationery 
Entertainment 
Office supplies 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Depreciation 15.2 

67,835,242 62,064,242 
393,615 361,966 

4,804,787 5,393,274 
4,522,378 4,331,463 
3,621,297 3,244,708 
2,318,571 1,916,354 
3,267,144 4,123,095 

402,111 365,849 
1,167,388 1,142,122 
2,798,475 2,107,019 
2,422,148 1,642,276 

363,758 266,006 
2,128,507 1,396,374 
4,387,480 4,959,186 

100,432,901 93,313,934 
29.1 Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 8,597,178 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 6,053,441) in respect of retirement benefits. 
29.2 This includes short term lease rentals. 
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June 30, June 30, 
2020 2019 

Note Rupees Rupees 
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

Tax Consultancy Services 2,160,000 2,236,500 
Auditors' remuneration 30.1 991,500 951,500 
Contribution towards: 
Workers' profit participation fund 10.8 2,233,024 6,080,459 
Workers' welfare fund 10.9 952,260 2,193,740 

6,336,784 11,462,199 

Auditors remuneration 

H.Y.K Si Co. 
Statutory audit 760,000 715,000 
Flalf yearly review 171,500 171,500 
Workers' Profit Participation Fund audit 20,000 20,000 
Certificate fee 40,000 45,000 

991,500 951,500 
991,500 951,500 

OTHER INCOME 
Income from financial assets 
Profit from Islamic banking deposits 9,094,817 - 
Exchange Gain 230,104 157,889 

Income from non Financial Assets 
Gain on sale of fixed asset 3,934,550 1,526,877 
Reversal of provision for doubtful Debts - 5,500 
Miscellaneous Income 1,709,557 1,965,942 

14,969,028 3,656,208 

32 FINANCE COST 

Profit on: 
Long term finances - Islamic banking 
Short term borrowings - secured - Islamic Banking 
Profit on Murabaha - Islamic Banking 

Less: Amortization of Deferred Grant 9 
Interest on Workers' Profit Participation Fund 
Financial charges on lease - Islamic Banking 
Bank charges and others 

64,061,567 24,292,790 

36,514,169 
13,118,548 
10,906,000 

(19,428) 
701,576 

1,801,459 
1,039,243 

14,172,320 
5,002,372 
3,112,698 

1,490,471 

514,929 
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33 TAXATION 

Current 
For the Year 
Prior Year 

Deferred 
For the Year 

Note 

33.1 
33.2 

33.4 

June 30, 
2020 

June 30, 
2019 

Rupees Rupees 

44,143,284 
(199,520) 

(30,803,683) 
13,140,081 

40,997,011 
49,579 

(11,199,235) 
29,847,355 

33.1 The Company computes tax expense based on the generally accepted interpretation of the tax laws to ensure that 
the sufficient provision for the purpose of taxation is available. Provision for the current year has been made on 
the basis of Minimum tax charge under section 113 and final tax regime under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The 
management is confident that sufficient future taxable profits would be available against which minimum tax can 
be utilized. 

33.2 This amount relates to adjustment of provision for taxation of previous year. 

33.3 The income tax assessments of the company have been finalized up to tax year 2019, except as mentioned in note 
14.1. The Provision for taxation is considered adequate to discharge the expected liability for current year. 

33.4 Tax charge reconciliation 

Profit before taxation 

Tax charge on accounting profit at applicable tax 
rate 29% (29%: 2019) as per Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 

Tax effect of amounts that are: 
- allowable deductions for tax purposes 

Tax effect of profit attributable to presumptive income 
Effect of presumptive tax 
Tax effect due to reversal of prior year's WWF 
Tax Credit for Investment u/s 65B 
Adjustment of prior year taxation 

Taxation for the year 

34 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 

Basic earnings per share 

Profit after taxation for the year 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year 

Basic earnings per share - Rupees 

Rupees 

Number 

Rupees 

40,773,628 

11,824,352 

2,917,492 

(1,336,376) 
317,803 

34,664 
(418,334) 
(199,520) 

13,140,081 

34.1 

27,633,547 

28,933,340 

0.96 

111,844,513 

32,434,909 

163,572 

(2,621,162) 
100,239 
(12,229) 

(267,553) 
49,579 

29,847,355 

81,997,158 

26,984,350 
Restated 
3.04 

34.1 During the year, the company issued 14,200,000 right shares therefore the earning per share for the year ended June 30, 2019 has 
been restated. 
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34.2 Diluted earnings per share 
A diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible instruments in issue as at June 
30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 which would have any effect on earning per share if the option to convert is exercised. 

Note 
35 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

Profit before taxation 

Adjustment for non cash charges and other items: 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Provision of staff retirement gratuity 
Finance cost 
Other income 

Working capital changes 
Increase in long term loans and advances 

Cash generated from operations 

35.1 Working capital changes 

(Increasej/decrease in current assets 
Store, spares and loose tools 
Stock-in-trade 
Trade debts 
Loans and advances 
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 
Other receivables 

Increase in current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 

36 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

35.1 

June 30, 
2020 

June 30, 
2019 

Rupees Rupees 

(2,289,403) 
(14,262,598) 

(6,991,677) 
118,084 

(17,637,583) 
(2,050,373) 

(99,568,014) 
(142,681,564) 

40,773,628 111,844,513 

19,228,150 
31,616 

42,362,283 
64,061,567 

(14,969,028) 

19,916,331 
51,098 

29,654,981 
24,292,790 
(3,656,208) 

110,714,588 70,258,992 
151,488,216 

(142,681,564) 
(2,594,900) 

182,103,505 
(32,736,785) 

(6,774,285) 

6,211,752 142,592,435 

772,632 
(168,061,436) 

(17,986,797) 
(2,823,555) 
87,864,321 

67,498,050 
(32,736,785) 

Cash and cash equivalents include: 
Cash and bank balances 
Short term borrowings 

37 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

25 
12 

448,819,055 

448,819,055 

5,967,361 

5,967,361 

The related party comprises of non-executive directors and key management personnel and other executives. The detail of related 
party transactions is given below: 

Non-Executive Director (s) 
Meeting fee 

Key Management Personnel 
Remuneration, Allowances and benefits 

Other Executives 
Remuneration, Allowances and benefits 

1,080,000 

55,038,427 

2,312,500 

815,000 

53,488,800 
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38 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES 

The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements for the year for remuneration, including certain benefits to the Chief Executive, Directors and Other Executives of the Company are as 
follows: 

 (Rupees) 
Chief Executive Executive Directors Non Executive Directors Executives Total 

Particulars 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

Managerial Remuneration 23,738,710 22,800,000 15,704,032 15,000,000 66,002,826 46,558,800 105,445,568 84,358,800 
Bonus & Leave encashment 550,000 1,425,000 368,750 937,500 2,975,085 2,597,425 3,893,835 4,959,925 
Meeting Fee 1,080,000 815,000 1,080,000 815,000 

Total 24,288,710 24,225,000 16,072,782 15,937,500 1,080,000 815,000 68,977,911 49,156,225 110,419,403 90,133,725 
Number of persons 1 1 2 2 6 6 19 14 28 23 

The Chief Executive, executive directors and some of the executives of the company are also provided with company maintained car for offical and personal use. 

39 SEGMENT REPORTING 

Management monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about 
resource allocation and performance assessment. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with internal reporting 
provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Segment performance is generally evaluated based on certain key 
performance indicators including business volume and gross profit. 

Segment results include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. 

The management has determined the operating segments and segment wise assets and liabilities based on the reports reviewed by 
the CODM that are used to make strategic and business decisions. 

i) AUTO-RICKSHAW 

This segment relates to the sale of auto-rickshaw assembled by the company. 

ii) AUTOMOTIVE PARTS 

This segment relates to the sale of automotive parts manufactured by the company, 

ill) HOUSEHOLD APPLIANCES 

This segment relates to the sale of household appliances imported by the Company, 

iv) AUTOMOBILES - FOUR WHEELER 

This segment relates to the sale of four wheeler automobiles imported by the company. 
Auto rickshaw Automotive parts )pliances Automobiles - Four Wheeler 

Segment revenue -Net 2,404,965,336 2,697,040,522 476,004,929 500,196,485 4,408,169 9,380,848 6,376,068 11,905,983 2,891,754,502 3,218,523,838 

Segment operating results 139,229,543 151,425,817 3,012,992 11,654,068 477,112 1,286,109 (49,668,195) (23,610,701) 93,051,452 
Segment assets 886,713,906 796,322,599 318,443,272 369,627,198 12,341,603 15,603,816 1,010,663,339 658,967,615 
Unallocated assets - ..... .. 
Total assets 
Segment liabilities 532,983,023 593,428,782 58,487,368 77,561,300 - - 3,536,773 3,536,773 
Unallocated liabilities - ..... . . 
Total liabilities 

2,228,162,120 1,840,521,229 
592,008,070 130,397,252 

2,820,170,190 1,970,918,481 
595,007,164 674,526,855 
456,203,914 251,684,380 

1,051,211,078 926,211,235 
Capital expenditure 4,221,840 1,592,823 .... 338,345,178 308,721,450 342,567,018 

Depreciation and amortization 13,986,421 14,175,645 4,755,604 5,783,000 7,466 8,784 510,274 

Non-cash charges other than 
depreciation and amortization 26,881,388 21,980,151 12,127,311 9,817,536 24,549 19,874 3,584,185 
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40 
40.1 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
Concentration of credit risk 
Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter parties failed completely to perform as 
contracted. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the 
reporting date was; 

June 30, June 30, 
2020 2019 

Note Rupees Rupees 
FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Long term deposits 18 3,512,855 3,319,855 
Trade debts - Considered Good 21 122,597,252 115,605,575 
Loans and advances 17 & 22 43,592,074 41,115,258 
Trade deposits 23 66,248,138 48,610,555 
Cash and bank balances 25 448,819,055 5,967,361 

684,769,374 214,618,604 

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts on geographical basis: 
Pakistan 122,597,252 115,605,575 

122,597,252 115,605,575 

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the reporting date by type of parties was: 

Corporate customers 106,365,871 88,372,112 
Distributor - - 
Dealers & customers 12,337,501 20,579,314 
Others 3,893,880 6,654,149 

122,597,252 115,605,575 

The aging of trade debts at the reporting date was: 
Not past due 65,436,112 58,259,806 
Past Due 0-30 days 33,266,614 23,573,671 
Past due 31-120 days 7,392,905 13,381,017 
Past due more than 120 days 16,501,621 20,391,081 

122,597,252 115,605,575 

40.2 

The trade debts provision for ECL has been disclosed in note 21.2 of these financial statements. 

Foreign exchange risk management 

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where payable exist due to transactions with foreign undertakings. Payable exposed to foreign 
currency risks are identified as either creditors or bills payable. The Company considers hedging if it is feasible. However the banks 
are not allowing any hedging and forward booking of foreign currency at the moment. 

40.3 Capital Risk Management 

The Company's objective when managing capital is to safe guard the company's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can 
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital base to support the 
sustained development of its business. The company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes 
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company 
may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders or issue new shares. As at June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company had 
surplus reserves to meet its requirements. 

40.4 Fair value of financial instruments 

The carrying value of all the financial instruments i.e. financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair 
values. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. International Financial Reporting Standard 13, 'Fair Value Measurements' requires the company to 
classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. 
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The fair value hierarchy has the following levels: 
- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1); 
- inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and 

- inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (level 3). 

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety shall be determined on the basis of 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. Currently there are no financial assets or financial liabilities 
which are measured at their fair value in the statement of financial position. 

40.5 Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in 
market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risk: Currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk. 

40.5.1 Currency Risk 

Currency risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The company is exposed to currency risk on import of raw materials and finished goods being denominated in US 
dollars. The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk for US Dollars is on account of outstanding letter of credits of Rs. 219.98 
million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 280.78 million). 

40.5.2 Interest / profit rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest / profit rates. Financial liabilities include balance of Rs. 388.85 Million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 224.07 million) which is subject to 
interest / profit rate risk. 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments 

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through statement of profit or loss. 
Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect statement of profit or loss. 

Cash Flow Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date, with all other variables remaining constant, the net income for 
the year would have been lower or higher by Rs. 3.888 million (2019: 2.241 million). 

40.5.3 Price Risk 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

prices (Other than those arising from interest/profit risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to 

the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. At 

present, the company is not exposed to price risk as there are no investments in marketable securities. 

40.5.4 Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk reflects an enterprise's inability in raising funds to meet commitments. The company follows an effective cash 
management planning policy to ensure availability of funds and to take appropriate measures for new requirements. 

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments. 
JUNE - 2020 (Rupees) 

Carrying Amount Contractual Cash Flows 6 months or less 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 
years 

Long term loan 316,045,803 351,171,204 42,458,539 44,265,642 82,143,255 182,303,768 
Liability under finance lease 72,800,000 77,259,335 54,407,478 14,622,793 8,218,515 10,549 
Trade and other payables 392,899,613 392,899,613 392,899,613 
Mark-up & profit accrued on 
loans and other payables 40,073,361 40,073,361 40,073,361 - . 
Short term borrowing - - - - 

821,818,777 861,403,513 529,838,991 58,888,435 90,361,770 182,314,317 



SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

JUNE-2019 (Rupees) 
Carrying Amount Contractual Cash Flows 6 months or less 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 

Long term loan 224,071,555 293,849,966 16,371,922 33,511,138 67,528,267 172,650,796 3,787,843 
Trade and other payables 505,559,696 505,559,696 505,559,696 - - - - 
Mark-up & profit accrued on 
loans and other oavables 15,695,208 15,695,208 15,695,208 - - 
Short term borrowing - - - - - - - 

745,326,459 815,104,870 537,626,826 33,511,138 67,528,267 172,650,796 3,787,843 

41 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION 

Installed Capacity 
Auto rickshaw (8 hours single shift basis) 

June 30, 
2020 

June 30, 
2019 

Numbers Numbers 

20,000 20,000 

Automotive parts 

The capacity of the plant and machinery relating to automotive parts is indeterminable due to the versatility of production. 

Actual Production 

Auto Rickshaw 12,253 15,887 

Automotive Parts 
Wheel Rims 68,533 73,395 

Under utilization of capacity was due to lower demand of Auto Rickshaw during the year. 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 

Number of permanent employees at the year end 
Average number of permanent employees during the year 

868 
834 

827 
832 

43 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT FOR THE COMPANIES LISTED ON ISLAMIC INDEX 

As per the requirements of the fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017, shariah compliant companies and the companies listed 
on Islamic Index shall disclose the following: 

43.1 Loans/advances obtained as per Islamic mode 
43.2 Shariah compliant bank deposits/bank balances. 
43.3 Profit earned from shariah compliant bank deposits/bank balances. 
43.4 Revenue earned from a shariah compliant business segment. 
43.5 Gain/loss or dividend earned from shariah compliant investments. 
43.6 Exchange gain earned from actual currency. 
43.7 Profit paid on Islamic mode of financing. 
43.8 Relationship with shariah compliant banks. 
43.9 Profits earned or interest paid on any conventional loan or advance. 

44 IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Disclosed in Note no. 6,10,12 
Disclosed in Note no. 25. 
Disclosed in Note no. 31. 
Disclosed in Note no. 26. 
No investment made during the year. 
Disclosed in Note no. 31. 
Disclosed in Note no. 32. 
Disclosed in Note no. 6,10,12 
No profit earned or interest paid to any 
conventional bank during the year. 

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic throughout the world including Pakistan has adversely impacted not only the lives of human 
beings but also disrupted the operation of businesses. After the massive increase in the affected cases of COVID-19 Pandemic in 
Pakistan, the Provincial and Federal Government of Pakistan announced temporary lock downs as a measure to reduce the further 
spread of the COVID-19. Accordingly, the Company shut down its plant as on March 24, 2020. However, in compliance with the 
relaxation announced by Governments, the Company resumed its operation partially as on April 15, 2020 and completely as on May 
18, 2020 after ensuring the implementation of the necessary Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for the safety of employees and 
for the smooth and adequate continuation of its business. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

The Company's operation disruption, including the suspension of production, sales and other operational activities, resulted in a 
decline of sales revenue of around 7% and the corresponding profitability considering its pre-COVID-19 business trend. 

The COVID-19 has also adversely impacted the progress on setting up of Company's four wheeler project due to which the Company 
could not achieve its desired date of completion. 

Considering the applicable IFRS and going concern assumptions used for the preparation of these financial statements, the 
Company has assessed the accounting implications of this pandemic on these financial statements and determines that there has 
been no specifically quantifiable material impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements except for the decrease in 
revenue and corresponding profitability as stated above. 

The State Bank of Pakistan announced various relaxations and refinance schemes to facilitate the business organizations to come 
out of the impact of pandemic, out of which the Company has availed the deferment of payment of principal amount of Diminishing 
Musharikah facility for a period of one year and refinance facility for the payment of wages & salaries of company's employees for 

the months April-June 2020 during the year and for the months July-September2020 subsequent to the date of these financial 
statements. Complete detail has been stated in note 6 to these financial statements. 

45 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 

The Board of Directors, at their meeting held on September 24, 2020 has recommended issuance of 30% bonus shares i.e. 30 
ordinary shares for every 100 ordinary shares subject to the approval of shareholders in the forthcoming 29th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company. 

These Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2020 do not include the effect of the above stated recommendation of 
bonus shares, which will be accounted for in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021, once it is approved in the 
forthcoming 29th Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

46 CORRESPONDING FIGURES 

Corresponding figures are re-arranged, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison. However, no such significant re- 
arrangements have been made in these financial statements. 

47 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE 

The Board of Directors of the Company has authorized these financial statements for issue on September 24, 2020. 

48 GENERAL 
The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees. 

MIAN ASAD HAMEED SAEED IQBAL KHAN 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

SO |2020 Annual Report 



SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that 29'h Annual General Meeting of 
Sazgar Engineering Works Limited will be held at All Seasons 
Wedding & Banquet Hall, Lala Zar Commercial Market, Thokar 
Niaz Baig, Opp Yasir Broast, 0.5 KM-Raiwind Road, Lahore on 
Tuesday, October 27, 2020 at 12:30 P.M. to transact the 
following businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Annual 
Financial Statements of the Company for the year 
ended 30th June, 2020 together with the Directors' 
Report, Auditors' Report and Chairperson's Review 
Report. 

2. To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration for 
the year ending June 30, 2021. The present auditors 
M/s H.Y.K & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire and 
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. 
The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have 
recommended their re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 

3. To approve the issuance of bonus shares @ 30% i.e. 
30 ordinary shares for every 100 ordinary shares held 
as recommended by the Board of Directors by 
capitalizing Free Reserves of Rs. 107,300,530/-. 

4. To approve the increase in Authorized Share Capital of 
the Company and to amend the respective clauses of 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 
Company accordingly. 

(STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2017 SETTING OUT THE MATERIAL FACTS PERTAINING TO THE 
SPECIAL BUSINESSES WITH DRAFT RESOLUTIONS AND FORM 
OF PROXY IS BEING SENT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS ALONG WITH 
NOTICE OF THE MEETING). 

By order of the Board 

Lahore 
October 05, 2020 

L( 

Arshad Mahmood 
(Company Secretary) 

Notes: 
The share transfer books of the company will remain 
closed from October 20, 2020 to October 27, 2020 (both 
days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the share 
registrar office M/s Corp Tec Associates (Pvt.) Ltd., 503-E, 
Johar Town, Lahore at the close of business on 19th 

October, 2020 will be treated in time for the entitlement 
of bonus shares and for attending the Annual General 
Meeting. 

A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting 
may appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend 
the meeting and vote for his/her behalf. Proxies in order 
to be effective must be received at the Share Registrar 
Office duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours 
(working days only) before the time of holding of the 
meeting. 

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the 
guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 dated January 26, 
2000 issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan for attending the meeting and appointment of 
proxies. 

Members are requested to promptly communicate the 
change in their addresses, if any, to the Company's share 
registrar. 

In accordance with the provision of section 223 (7) of the 
Companies Act 2017, the financial statements and 
reports of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020 
have been placed on the Company's web site 
www.sazgarautos.com for the information of 
shareholders. 

Consent for Video Conference Facility 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, 
members can avail video conference facility to participate 
in this Annual General Meeting provided that the 
Company receives consent from the members holding in 
aggregate 10% or more shareholding, residing in a city, at 
least seven (7) days prior to the date of meeting. Subject 
to the fulfillment of the above conditions, members shall 
be informed of the venue along with complete 
information necessary to access the facility. Format of 
request form has been placed on the Company's website. 

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan's notification S.R.O 470(l)/2016 dated 31 May, 
2016, the shareholders of the Company in EOGM of the 
Company held on 18th March 2017 had accorded their 
consent for transmission of annual reports including 
audited annual financial statements, notices of annual 
general meetings and other information contained 
therein of the Company through CD or DVD or USB 
instead of transmitting the same in hard copies. 
Accordingly, the Company has sent its Annual Report 
2020 in the form of CD. The shareholders who wish to 
receive hard copy of the Annual Report 2020 may send 
their requests to the Company Secretary/ Share Registrar 
as per the Standard Request Form which is available on 
the website of the Company. The Company will supply 
hard copies of the aforesaid document to the 
shareholders free of cost, within one week of such 
request. The shareholders who intend to receive the 
annual report including the notice of meeting through e- 
mail are requested to provide their written consent on 
the Standard Request Form available on the Company's 
website. 

The members may attend the AGM online through 
ZOOM, by following the below guidelines: 

(i) The member shall get himself/herself registered by 
sending his/her request to the Company at e-mail ID 
companv.secretarv@sazgarautos.com as per Standard 
Request Form available on the Company's website 
(www.sazgarautos.com) or can send his/her request to 
the Company Secretary at 88-Ali Town, Thokar Niaz, Baig, 
Raiwind Road, Lahore, along with a legible copy of CNIC 
not later than October 19, 2020. 
(ii) Zoom Link shall be sent by the Company only on email 
ID or Mobile/Whatsapp Number mentioned in Standard 
Request Form. 
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(iii) Members may send their comments/suggestions on 
any of the agend item to Company Secretary on email 
ID; companv.secretarv(5)sazgarautos.com or whatsapp 
no. 0321 8469016 not later than October 19, 2020. 

h. Deposit of Physical Shares in CDC Account 

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every 
existing company shall be required to replace its physical 
shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be 
specified and from the date notified by the Commission, 
within a period not exceeding four years from the 
commencement of the Act i.e. May 30, 2017. 

The Physical Shareholders having physical shareholding 
are encouraged to open CDC Investor Account with CDC 
or CDC Sub- Account with any of the brokers to place 
their physical shares into Script less form. 

i. In case the Poll is demanded by the shareholders under 
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company 
shall consider Postal Balloting facility for voting, under 
the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018. 

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2017 SETTING OUT THE MATERIAL FACTS PERTAINING TO THE 
SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 

This statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the special 
businesses to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting of the 
Company to be held on Tuesday, October 27, 2020. 

ITEM NO. 3 OF THE AGENDA 

The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended issuance 
of 30% bonus shares from the Company's Free Reserves by 
capitalization of a sum of Rs. 107,300,530/- for the issuance of 
10,730,053 fully paid bonus shares. For this purpose following 
resolutions are proposed to be passed as ordinary resolutions with 
or without any modification, addition or deletion: 

(i) "Resolved that a sum of Rs. 107,300,530/- out of the 
Company's Free Reserves be capitalized and applied for 
the issue of 10,730,053 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 
10/- each as bonus shares and be allotted to those 
shareholders whose names appear in the register of 
members at the close of the business on October 19, 
2020 in the proportion of thirty (30) ordinary shares for 
every hundred (100) ordinary shares held by a member. 
These bonus shares shall rank pari passu in all respects 
with the existing shares of the Company." 

(ii) "Further resolved that all the fractional Bonus Shares 
shall be consolidated into whole shares and shall be sold 
in the Stock Market. The proceeds of sale of 
consolidated fractional shares when realized shall be 
paid to a charitable institution approved under the 
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001." 

(iii) "Further resolved that directors and company secretary 
be and are hereby authorized singly to complete all 
corporate and legal formalities that may be necessary or 
required to give effect to these resolutions for the issue, 
allotment and distribution of bonus shares." 

ITEM NO. 4 OF THE AGENDA 

The existing authorized capital of the Company is not sufficient for 
the future increase in paid up share capital, therefore, the Board of 
Directors has recommended to increase the Authorized Share 
Capital of the Company from Rs. 500.00 M to Rs. 1,000.00 M to 
facilitate the issue of further capital. For this purpose following 
resolutions are proposed to be passed as special resolutions with or 
without any modification, addition or deletion: 

"Resolved that the Authorized Share Capital of the Company be 
and is hereby increased from Rs. 500,000,000/- divided into 
50,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs.1,000,000,000/- 
divided into 100,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each and 
Clause V of Memorandum of Association and Clause 4 of the 
Articles of Association of the Company be and are hereby 
amended accordingly as per following comparative statement:" 

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF EXISTING AND PROPOSED CLAUSES 
OF MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

DESCRIPTION 
Clause V of 
Memorandum 
of Association 

Clause 4 of 
Articles of 
Association 

EXISTING CLAUSES 
The Share Capital of 
the Company is Rs. 
500,000,000/- 
(Rupees Five 
Hundred Million 
only) divided into 
50,000,000 Ordinary 
shares of Rs. 10/- 
each with the power 
to increase or reduce 
or alter the capital of 
the Company as 
permissible under 
the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984. 
The Authorized 
Capital of the 
Company is Rs. 
500,000,000/- 
(Rupees Five 
Hundred Million 
only) divided into 
50,000,000 ordinary 
shares of Rs. 10/- 
each. 

PROPOSED CLAUSES 
The Share Capital of 
the Company is Rs. 
1,000,000,000/- 
(Rupees One Billion 
only) divided into 
100,000,000 Ordinary 
shares of Rs. 10/- 
each with the power 
to increase or reduce 
or alter the capital of 
the Company as 
permissible under the 
Companies Act, 2017. 

The Authorized 
Capital of the 
Company is Rs. 
1,000,000,000/- 
(Rupees One Billion 
only) divided into 
100,000,000 ordinary 
shares of Rs. 10/- 
each. 

"Further resolved that the Chief Executive and Company Secretary 
of the Company be and are hereby authorized individually to 
complete all the necessary corporate and legal formalities to give 
legal effect to the above said changes." 

Amended copy of Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 
Company is available at the Company's registered office for the 
inspection of members during working hours (10:00-13:00hrs) up to 
the date of Annual General Meeting. 

The directors of the Company have no interest in the Special 
Businesses and / or in the Special Resolutions except to the extent 
that they are members of the Company. 

The Directors of the Company have no interest directly or indirectly 
in this Special Business except to the extent of their entitlement to 
bonus shares as shareholders of the Company. 
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FORM OF PROXY 

I / We 

of  

a member of SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 

hereby appoint Mr. / Mrs. / Ms.   

of  

or failing him Mr. / Mrs. / Ms. 

of  

Who is / are also member/s of Sazgar Engineering Works Limited to act as my / our proxy and to vote 
for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 29th Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company to 
be held on Tuesday October 27, 2020 at 12:30 P.M. at All Seasons Wedding & Banquet Hall, Lala Zar 
Commercial Market,Thokar Niaz Baig,OppYasirBroast, 0.5 KM Raiwind Road, Lahore and at any 
adjournment thereof. 

Signed this. . day of. .2020 

Folio 
No. 

CDC Participant 
ID No. 

CDC Account/ 
Sub-Account No. 

No. of 
shares held 

Signature over 
Revenue Stamp of 

Rupees 5/- 

Witness 1 

Signature 
Name 
CNIC No. 
Address 

Witness 2 

Signature 
Name 
CNIC No. 
Address 

Notes: 1. The proxy must be a member of the Company. 
2. The signature must tally with the specimen signature/s registered with the 

Company. 
3. If a proxy is granted by a member who has deposited his/her shares in 

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, the proxy must be 
accompanied with participant's ID number and CDC account/sub-account 
number alongwith attested photocopies of Computerized National Identity 
Card or the Passport of the beneficial owner. Representatives of corporate 
members should bring the documents required for such purpose. 

4. The proxy shall produce his / her original (CNIC) or original passport at the 
time of the meeting. 

5. Theinstrumentof Proxy properly completed should be deposited at the Share 
Registrar Office of die Company not less than 48 hours before the rime of 
holding the meeting. 
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Registered Office: 88 Ali Town, Thokar Niaz Baig, Raiwind Road, Lahore. 
Tel: 042-35297861-62, 35291573-74, Fax: 042-35297863 
Factory: 18 Km, Raiwaind Road, Lahore. Tel: 042- 35330300-2, Fax: 042-35330329 
sazgar@brain.net.pk info@sazgarautos.com www.sazgarautos.com 


